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Financial Summary
MBERE

RESULTS =4
Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E2-—F —T-%F —EENF —ZENF TR
+=A=+-B +-A=+-B +=-A=+—-8 +-A=+—-H +-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET THET FET FHET
Revenue &= 14,647 16,357 17,777 16,667 15,936
Profit before tax % 75 A 6,074 3,163 4,645 3,645 26,187
Income tax expense Frig Rk X (1,578) (536) (420) (29 (221)
Profit attributable ARABEA
to owners of & {63 F1
the Company 2,627 4,225 3,616 25,966
Profit attributable to RRARHEA
owners of the Company &1k 3 7l
(excluding extra-ordinary (N B4 3E
items) BEMHER) 2,627 4,205 3,616 25,966
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Financial Summary (continued)
B 2 (E)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E--F —ZE-ZF —ZZThE —ZTN\F —ETLE
+=A=+-B +=-ZA=+-B +zZA=+—-HB +=ZA=+-B +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET THET FHET THET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEBE 156,588 147,824 144,774 141,871 139,410
Total liabilities BELE (21,748) (18,110) (18,199 (19,518) (20,261)
Net assets FEE 134,840 129,714 126,575 122,353 119,149
PER SHARE DATA SREE
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——% —Z2-%F —ZTNEF —EENE —ETtF
+ZA=+-B +ZR=+—H +ZR=+—H +ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents
AL Bl Al Al bRl
Earnings per share BRRAM
(excluding extra-ordinary (R B 3E3E
items) REMIER) 0.84 0.49 0.79 0.68 4.92
Net book value per share  F R EEEH1E - 24.28 23.76 22.97 22.36
EBERAERAT —T——F5% 05



Financial Summary (continued)

MR E(E)
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of the
Company, | am pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company together with our
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31
December 2011 (“2011” or the “current year” or “Reporting year” or the “year
under review”) to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group consolidated revenue for
the current year decreased 10.5% to approximately HK$14.65 million (2010:
approximately HK$16.36 million). Net profit attributable to shareholders was
approximately HK$4.50 million (2010: HK$2.63 million). Basic earnings per
share were approximately 0.84 HK cent for the year ended 31 December
2011. Total assets less current liabilities increased by approximately 3.7%, a
net increase by approximately HK$5.41 million to approximately HK$149.78
million as compared with HK$144.37 million as at 31 December 2010.

DIVIDENDS

The Company did not propose any dividends for the year ended 31
December 2011. The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group is in a better position. Financially, the Group’s
balance sheet is even stronger than it was ever before. All of these
achievements clearly demonstrated the persistent efforts made by the
management and employees of the Group in developing its business.

The world economy facing severe and long-lasting recessionary pressures,
these risks are evolving to new levels in response to the widespread financial
turmoil and general downturn. Our strategy there is to wait for clearer signals.
Given our operational strengths and financial resources, we are poised to
seize business opportunities whenever they appear.

Besides, the Group will review our existing businesses and update the
business plans and strategies regularly. As always, our aim is to have better
utilization of the Group’s resource in order to maximize every shareholder’s
interest.
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to extend my sincere gratitude to all
s and customers for their support, and to all
efforts, hard work and selfless dedication. Their
sents the foundation for the Group’s future business

Wang Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2011, the profit attributable to owners and net cash balance of the Group
increased by 71.1% to HK$4.50 million (2010: HK$2.63 million) and increased
by 14.2% to HK$43.29 million (2010: HK$37.91 million) respectively. This is
despite a very challenging year with ongoing problems in the global economy.

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted
to approximately HK$14.65 million, representing an decrease by
approximately 10.5% as compared to approximately HK$16.36 million in the
previous year. The decrease is mainly due to the decrease in business volume
of star-rated hotel over the previous year.

Given our strong balance sheet and cash generation ability, our financial
position continues to be strong. For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
gearing ratio (divided non-current liabilities by equity plus non-current liabilities
multiple by 100 which results in percentage) of the Group was 10.0% (2010:
10.2%).

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

A. Star-rated hotel operation

Star-rated hotel operation is the main source of revenue for the Group.
For the year ended 31 December 2011, turnover of the hotel was
approximately HK$13.24 million (2010: HK$15.08 million), representing
an decrease of approximately 12.2% from the corresponding financial
year.

For the year under review, the Occupancy Rate was approximately
45.6% (2010: 56.1%) representing a decrease of 18.7% over the
previous year. Average Daily Rate (ADR) was approximately RMB233
(2010: RMB215) representing an increase of 8.4% over the previous
year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWED N (E)

The following table sets out the amount and percentage of contributions
from different businesses of the star-rated hotel operation for the year
ended 31 December 2011, together with comparative figures of 2010:

31 December 2011

—®——F+=A=+-8

BE—_FT——F+-_A=t—HL K

SEEQOEEENSIREBNER
BLEAECEFAEOHLE T —T4[F

HLL &N T -

31 December 2010
—E-ZF+_-H=+—H

HK$ in % in HK$ in % in
thousand turnover thousand turnover
R & ¥
FHET B FAETT B
Accommodation revenue & & WA 12,798 85%
Catering revenue ZRRB LA 275 2%
Rental revenue AR WA 2,012 13%
15,085 100%

Accommodation revenue EERHERA

The accommodation revenue was mainly determined by the number of
Available Rooms, Occupancy Rate and ADR of the Group’s hotels.
During the reporting year, the accommodation revenue of star-rated
hotels for the reporting year was approximately HK$11.56 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 9.6% over 2010.
mainly because the accommodation revenue loss stemming from
competition among star-rated hotels further intensified, there is a
situation of oversupply in the industry and the interior facility is
functional obsolescence. This directly affected accommodation revenue
of star-rated hotels.

[t was

Catering and rental revenue

In order to stabilized the income of hotel operation, at the beginning of
2011, the hotel operator let out the restaurant in the Group’s Hotel. On
the one hand, this contributed to approximately HK$1 million in rental
revenue during the year under review. On the other hand, there is no
longer a corresponding catering income and the total catering revenue
of the Group’s Hotel dropped accordingly.

To meet the challenges arising from the overall operating environment,
we will continue to strengthen cost management and risk control,
optimize the resources and management flow of the hotel operation,
improve its ability to respond to contingencies and enhance the overall
economic efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B. Hong Kong properties held by the Group

The occupancy rate for the properties of the Group is nearly full during
the year under review. It brought steady rental income to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the rental income of properties
in Hong Kong was approximately HK$1.41 million, while the rental
income was approximately HK$1.27 million in year 2010. The increase
was mainly resulted from the increase in rental income through rental
reversion as the leasing cycle reverts.

With the support of the strong local economy and most of existing
tenancy contracts of the Group’s properties will expire after 2012;
therefore, the impact on the rental income in 2012 is expected to be
insignificant.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company disposed the
property located at Shops No. 50 on Ground Floor, Shaukiwan Centre,
No. 407 Shau Kei Wan Road, Hong Kong. Pursuant to the Sales and
Purchase agreement, the Company agreed to sell, and the purchaser
agreed to purchase, the above-mentioned property for a cash
consideration of HK$3.8 million.

C. Piano manufacturing

The Group diversified its business into the piano manufacturing sector
by acquiring a 25% equity interest of Harmony Piano in 2005. This
business interest brought steady profit to the Group for the year under
review.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

In order to retain resilience and react in a timely manner to the volatile
business environment, the Group will continue to maintain a lean organization
and continue to upholding a standardized and market-oriented operation
model. While embedding the risk management philosophy into its business
operations, the Group will carefully balance risk and opportunity management
activities with the objective of creating and preserving value for stakeholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B E w5 2 AT ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2011, the total issued share capital of the Company was
HK$66,780,000 divided into 534,240,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.125 each.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a net cash balance of approximately
HK$43.29 million (2010: HK$37.91 miillion). The Group’s net asset value (assets
less liabilities) was approximately HK$134.84 milion (2010: HK$129.71
million), with a liquidity ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities) of 7.69
(2010: 11.90). This high level of liquidity and available funding will enable the
Group to meet its expected future working capital requirements and to take
advantage of growth opportunities for the business. During the year, there
was no material change in the Group’s funding and treasury policy. The
Directors do not expect the Company to experience any problem with liquidity
and financial resources in foreseeable future.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has not charged any of its assets.

Exposure to fluctuation in exchange rate and related
hedges

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Operating outgoings
incurred by the Group’s subsidiary in the mainland China are mainly
denominated in RMB as well as its revenue. The management is of the
opinion that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange rate risks is not
significant and hedging through the use of derivative instruments is
considered unnecessary. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates of
Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi may have an impact on the operating results
of the Group.

The funding and treasury policies of existing subsidiaries of the Group are
centrally managed and controlled by the Group’s senior management in Hong
Kong.

Substantial Disposal and Acquisitions

The Group had not participated in any substantial acquisition and disposal
during the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
B E R B o AT ()

Contingent Liability XAREE

The Group did not have any significant contingent liability during the year. AEBRARFERNTEETMBEARAREE -
Major Events FESEH

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no material capital commitments RZ-T——F+-_A=+—H AKEFI &
and no future plans for material investments or capital assets. BEABEAERE MEL2ESEAKEXNBAE

REEZRKGE -

Human Resources ABDER

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had approximately 92 employees in @ R -_E——F+_A=+—H XEBRH
Hong Kong and Xiamen. The remuneration package was determined with B REFIHEE HR2ZEE - IS HEHE TR IE
reference to performance and the prevailing market rate. The Group also HE 7 XRIEBELTHBERET - AEE JREH
provides employees with training, the opportunity to join its mandatory BB E3| L E@S|E A FEL T2 KB ER
provident fund scheme and medical insurance cover. R -

BEZRARAR —ZT——FF® 13



Directors’ Biography
EEEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Xiaowu, aged 54, is the Chairman of the Group, a director and
Vice Chairman of HC Technology Capital Company Limited and Vice General
Manager of Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company Limited, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group. Mr. Wang joined the Group in December
2008 and is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Wang has over 25 years’ senior management experience including
Assistant President and General Manager in the Treasury Department and
International Finance Department in Fujian International Trust and Investment
Corporation prior to joining the Group.

Mr. Wang acquired his Bachelor Degree in Electrical and Mechanical
Engineering from Tsinghua University in the PRC and Master Degree in
Business Administration from the University of Glasgow in the UK.

Mr. WANG Ruilian, aged 48, is the General Manager of the Group. Mr. Wang
joined the Group in July 2006 and is responsible for the daily operations and
execution of the strategies developed by the Board. Mr. Wang has over 20
years’ experience in management and finance. Mr. Wang has previously been
sent to overseas companies to take up a number of senior management
posts, including a director and vice general manager of the Finance
Department of Fujian Investment and Development Company Limited, and
the managing director of Fujian Enterprises (Hungary) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wang acquired his Bachelor Degree in Economics from Xiamen University
in the PRC and Master Degree of International Management from Australian
National University in Australia.

Mr. LIU Xiaoting, aged 46, is the Vice General Manager of the Group. Mr.
Liu joined the Group in November 2004 and assists the General Manager for
the daily operations. Mr. Liu has over 20 years’ experience in finance
management. Mr. Liu has taken up a number of management posts, included
the related Department of Fujian Provincial People’s Government; Director of
Fujian Hua Min Import & Export Co., Ltd.; Assistant General Manager and the
in charge of Finance Department of Fujian Industrial Company Limited;
Financial Controller of trading firm in Hong Kong.
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Directors’ Biography (continued)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Qiang, aged 45, is the General Manager of Investment and
Planning Department of Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company Limited.
Mr. Feng joined the Group in January 2005. He spent years of research in the
Chinese Academy of Social Science at Fujian for corporate strategies and
reforms. He also has practical experience in corporate investment planning,
operational management and corporate restructuring during his service in the
government of Fujian Province and its related companies. Mr. Feng has over
26 years’ corporation and investment management experience.

Mr. Feng has a Bachelor Degree in Economics from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics.

Mr. YE Tao, aged 40, is the Deputy Managing Director of Sino Earn Holdings
Limited. Mr. Ye joined the Group in September 2004. Mr. Ye has over 10
years’ management experience. Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Ye did not
held any directorship in other listed public companies within the past 3 years.

Mr. Ye graduated from Fuzhou University with a Bachelor Degree in
Economics and acquired his Master Degree in Finance from Xiamen
University.
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Directors’ Biography (continued)
ES/EE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Kwong Siu, S.B.S, aged 77, was the Delegate of the National
People’s Congress (10th Session), he is currently the Vice Chairman of BOC
International Holdings Limited, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong
Federation of Fujian Association, the Honorary President of Supervision of
Hong Kong Fukien Chamber of Commerce, the Vice Chairman of Fujian-
Hong Kong Economic Cooperation, the Life Honorary Chairman of the
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce and the Consultant of the Hong
Kong Chinese Enterprises Association, the Honorary President of Chinese
Bankers Club, Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is also the Independent Non-executive
Director of Bank of China International Limited, CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited (was withdrawn of its listing on 5 November 2008), Citic
Bank International Limited (formerly known as Citic Ka Wah Bank Limited),
China Overseas Land & Investment Limited, Yuzhou Properties Company
Limited, Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited and Far East Consortium International
Limited. Mr. Lam was awarded the HKSAR Silver Bauhinia Star in 2003.

Mr. CHEUNG Wah Fung Christopher, up , aged 60, joined the Group in
December 2003. He is the Chairman of Christfund Securities Limited,
Christfund Futures Limited, Christfund Finance Limited and Christfund
Corporate Finance Limited, a Nonexecutive Director of Tongda Group
Holdings Limited. He serves as a Member of the People’s Political
Consultative Conference of PRC, the Honorary President of Hong Kong
Securities Association Limited, chairman of the Council Member of the
Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, Deputy Secretary of the Friends of
Hong Kong Association, a Council Member (1997-2000) of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and a Director (1998-2000) of the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited, Committee Member of the Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce, the Honorary President of Hong Kong Federation of
Fujian Association and Member of the Standing Committee of the Federation
of Commerce and Industry of Guangdong Province and Mr. Cheung acquired
his Master Degree in MBA from City University of Hong Kong and was
appointed as Justice of Peace by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
Government in 2000.

Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim, FCPA (Aust.), CPA (Macau), FCPA (Practising), aged 76,
joined the Group in September 2004. He is the founder and Senior Partner of
PKF. Mr. Leung, is a Non-executive Director of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange
of Personnel Centre Limited, an Independent Non-executive Director of a
number of listed companies namely Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd., YGM
Trading Ltd., S E A Holdings Ltd., High Fashion International Ltd. and Phoenix
Satellite Television Holdings Ltd..
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The directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and the
consolidated audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are hotel business and property
investment and those of its subsidiaries are disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by principal
activities and geographical area of operation for the year ended 31 December
2011 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results and cash flow of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 and the state of affairs of the Group and the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2011 are set out in the financial statements on pages 40
to 122.

DIVIDENDS

The Company did not propose any dividends for the year ended 31
December 2011. The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the statement of net assets/liabilities of the
Group for the last financial years is set out on pages 4 to 6.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and
the Group’s largest customer accounted for 22% and 8.7% (2010: 25.9%
and 6.5%) respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the
Group’s largest supplier accounted for 47.3% and 11.5% (2010: 40.6% and
19.8%) respectively of the Group’s total purchase for the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEHE (H)

None of the Directors, their associates, or shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers during the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2011 are set out on page 42 and in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT

Details of the movements in prepaid lease payment of the Group are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 December 2011, the investment properties of the Group were revalued
by an independent firm of professional surveyor and property valuer on an
open market value basis at HK$29.80 million. Details of these and other
movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group are set
out in pages 123 to 124 and note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates for the
year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in notes 18 and 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOAN AND OTHER

There were no outstanding bank loan and other borrowings by the Company
and the Group at 31 December 2011.

CAPITALISED BORROWING COSTS

No borrowing costs were being capitalised during the year ended 31
December 2011 (2010: Nil).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors of the Company (including our Independent
Executive Directors) believe that the related party transactions set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements are carried out in the ordinary
course of business and on normal commercial terms.

For the purpose of the related party transactions set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Board of the Company confirms that,
none of them constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

Transactions listed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements do not
constitute discloseable connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEHE (H)

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2011 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. WANG Xiaowu (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Ruilian
Mr. LIU Xiaoting

Non-executive directors:

Mr. FENG Qiang
Mr. YE Tao

Independent Non-executive directors:

Mr. LAM Kwong Siu (re-appointed on 11 December 2011)
Mr. CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher (re-appointed on 11 December 2011)
Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim

In accordance with article 101 of the Company’s Articles of Association, one
third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to one third shall retire at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for
re-election.

Mr. Leung Hok Lim has since 24 September 2004 been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company with tenure of two years and was
reappointed at most three times with tenure of two years and expired on 23
September 2010, and was reappointed again with tenure of two years,
expiring on 23 September 2012. Mr. Lam Kwong Siu and Mr. Cheung Wah
Fung, Christopher have been Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company since 11 December 2003 with tenure of two years and were
reappointed at most four times with tenure of two years and expired on 10
December 2011 and were reappointed on 11 December 2011 with tenure of
two years, expiring on 10 December 2013.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting have a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHY

Biography of the Company'’s directors is set out on pages 14 to 16.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS BY DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares, and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)), which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were
as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of
the Company
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEHE (H)

Note:

These interests represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of share options
granted by the Company to Mr. Wang Xiaowu as beneficial owners, the details of which
are set out in the Section “Share Options” below.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, none of the directors of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of
the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries engaged in any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the directors of the Company nor their respective
associates had any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with any business of the Group.

INTERESTS IN ASSETS OF THE GROUP

During the year, none of the directors of the Company had any direct or
indirect interests in any assets which have been acquired or disposed of, or
leased to, or which are proposed to be acquired or disposed of or leased to,
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company was materially interested in any
contract or arrangement subsisting during or at the end of the year which is
significant in relation to the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, as far as is known to the directors of the Company
and the Company, and as confirmed upon reasonable enquiry, the register
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO shows that the
following persons (not being directors and employees of the Company) had,
or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the
Company or the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Company or had an option in respect of such capital were as follows:
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEHE (H)

Notes:

() HC Technology beneficially holds 279,241,379 shares in the Company. Pursuant
to the SFO, FHIG is deemed to be interested in the 279,241,379 shares by virtue
of its being beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of FIDC
and FIDC is deemed to be beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share
capital of HC Technology. FHIG is a state-owned corporation of the PRC.

(b) Sino Earn beneficially holds 72,553,382 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
SFO, each of FHTI and FHIC is deemed to be interested in the 72,553,382
shares by virtue of their being beneficially interested in 30% and 70% of the
issued share capital of Sino Earn respectively. Both FHTI and FHIC are state-
owned corporations of the PRC.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2011, the directors of the
Company and the Company, as confirmed upon reasonable enquiry made by
them and as indicated in the register maintained by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO, were not aware of any other persons (other than
directors and employees of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares (including any
interests in options in respect of such capital), which are required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who owned any interests or short
positions to be recorded in the register under Section 336 of the SFO; or who
was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Company or had any option in
respect of such capital.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

On 4 March 2008, Xiamen South East Asia Company Limited (“Xiamen
Plaza”) entered into a management contract (“Management Contract”) with
EFfSEBEEEEAR AR (Xiamen Friendship International Co. Ltd)
(“Friendship International”) in relation to the appointment of Friendship
International to manage the daily operations of the Hotel for a period of five
years. Friendship International has paid RMB5 million as security deposit to
Xiamen Plaza, which is refundable upon expiry of the Management Contract.

Under the Management Contract, Xiamen Plaza is entitled to receive income
from Friendship International which is calculated in accordance with the terms
of the Management Contract.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in China are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The subsidiary is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries, had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2011,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors consider that throughout the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“Code on Corporate Governance”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. The Company had received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a verbal confirmation of his independence.

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance. The
Company had made specific enquiries to all Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance during the year ended
31 December 2011, and had received confirmations from all Directors that
they had fully complied with the required standard set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance during the year ended 31 December 2011.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, the Model Code,
as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Specific enquiry has been made with all Directors and the Directors have
complied with the requirements set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2011.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEHE (H)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Group was established in 1999. Currently, it
comprises three members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim who possesses professional accounting
qualification, Mr. Lam Kwong Siu and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher.
Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee adopted the term of reference in accordance with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices issued by the Stock Exchange. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. Two meetings have
been held by the Audit Committee during the year. Each Committee meeting
was provided with necessary financial information of the Group for
consideration, review and assessment of major issues.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for recommending candidates to fill
vacancies in the Board based on their qualifications, abilities and potential
contribution to our Company and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment, re-election and removal of directors to the Board. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on our
Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee was formed by the Group in March 2005. The
Committee currently comprises three members, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors namely Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher, Mr.
Leung Hok Lim and Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, whereas Mr. Cheung Wah Fung,
Christopher was nominated as the Chairman of the committee.

26 FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011

BEREES

AEER-NWNANFRIERZZES -HEK
ZESH="EREMAK REDRBIIIFHN
TES ERERABRALE(ABEXSHME
B) MERKEERKRERLEE - RBRAE
RECZBEEIF EHRZESCRMER
XM EREARATR TR -2 BESR
B -BEZZB@2IERBEEEHN LR
AEB U BERREFRAMBEZE - BRE
EgnNAEEEETMAER - BREZEB®
ERHERHVGAZAESEUBER - 1K
BEZE RALMFEIERSIR2ERER

REEZES

RAZECRERBERZEAEZNEE 7
ELEARAMEBEERM MEFEHRBA
BREREEETREBRETZZE T2
REROEFNTARAFTREAZRA - EA
ZESNRBEEEHN AR MEL -

AEER_ZETRF=ZAKUREBEZEEG -
BRZBEH-_2KEBEK BERBIUF
HITES BREREELELE REBRLERMK
BREE REGEERREBREZEGER -



Directors’ Report (continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Group established its Remuneration Committee in March 2005. The
Committee currently comprises three members, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, Mr. Leung Hok Lim
and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher. Mr. Lam Kwong Siu is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee adopted the
term of reference in accordance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices issued by the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee met
while required as to review the emolument policy and the benefits of the
Executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the General
Manager of the Group about their proposals relating to remuneration package
and other human resources issues of the Directors and senior management
of the Group. The emoluments of Directors are based on each Director’s skill,
knowledge and involvement in the Group’s affairs, the Group’s performance
and profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was
held by the public as of the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.
In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised
as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A resolution for the appointment of
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company for the
subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognized standards of corporate governance
principles and practices has always been one of the top priorities of the
Company. The Board of Directors (the Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is one of the areas that lead to the success of the Company and
in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the
Board is devoted to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness
of such principles and practices.

The Directors consider that throughout the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“Code on Corporate Governance”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock of Hong Kong Limited
(the Listing Rules”). The Company had received a verbal confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES

The Board is principally responsible for the management and operations of
the Group. The Board also reviews the overall strategic development and
monitors the financial performance of the Group. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibilities in reviewing the reports of the Group for the year covered
by this annual report.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, three of which are Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. One of the Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Board composition review will be made regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and expertise appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Group. In accordance with article 101 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, one third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-
third shall retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and shall be
eligible for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

CHAIRMAN’S ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY

The Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and the Group General Manager are
separate individuals, to maintain segregation of duties between the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business. One important role of the Chairman is to provide leadership for the
Board. The Chairman has to ensure that the Board works effectively,
discharges responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. All Directors are consulted about
matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated to
the Company Secretary the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each
Board meeting.

The Group supports the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Group General Manager has been delegated
such authority. The Board always acts in the best interests of the Group, and
all Directors have made full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board.
Meeting between the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) without the presence of Executive
Directors has been scheduled as at least once a year.

A package of orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities
of Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong is provided to each newly appointed
Director. Orientation meeting for briefing on business and operations of the
Group will be held with the Directors concerned.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERBRE (BA)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board meets regularly. For the year ended 31 December 2011, it held
four meetings. Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance.
All notices of the meeting of the Board will be made to various directors at
least 14 days prior to the meeting, the Company Secretary will assist the
Chairman in preparing the memorandum of the meeting as to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. Board papers are circulated not less than
three days before the Board meetings, to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings and to offer
them sufficient time to review the documents. The Company Secretary and
the Quialified Accountant normally attend all regular Board meetings, to advise
on corporate governance, statutory compliance, accounting and financial
matters when necessary, as to ensure the compliance and maintenance of
sound corporate governance practice. The Company Secretary shall prepare
minutes and keep record of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all
Board meetings.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships) among members of the Board. All of them are free to
exercise their independent judgment. The Company has received annual
written confirmations from all independent non-executive Directors in respect
of their independence during the year pursuant to the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The directors have overall responsibility for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s system of internal control. For the year ended 31
December 2011, the directors periodically reviewed its internal control system
to ensure its effectiveness and adequacy, which embraced financial,
operational and risk management control.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERRE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board met four times andthe W-E——F+ - HA=+—HEE EF§

Directors’ attendance at the Board Meeting is as follows: BITMAEeH =FHFEEROAT :
Attendance

Director B= HERE

Chairman TE

WANG Xiaowu pa ANy 4

Executive Directors HITEE

WANG Ruilian I I R 4

LIU Xiaoting 2117 4

Non-executive Directors HHITESE

FENG Qiang 5 o 3

YE Tao ®E 1

Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHHITESE

LAM Kwong Siu MEJK 3

CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher oK g 4

LEUNG Hok Lim R 2% 4

Records of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary, and

submitted to each Director for filing and made available to them for their

inspection.

Insurance policy has been arranged to safeguard the interests of the Directors

in case of legal proceedings.

Non-executive directors

Mr. Ye Tao and Mr. Feng Qiang were appointed as Non-executive Directors
on 24 September 2004 and 27 January 2005 respectively and without a
specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting in compliance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERBRE (BA)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each Independent Non-executive Director has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is
of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Mr. Leung Hok Lim has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company with tenure of two years and was reappointed at most three times
with tenure of two years and expired on 23 September 2012, Mr. Lam Kwong
Siu and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung have been Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company with tenure of two years and was reappointed at
most four times with tenure of two years and expired on 10 December 2013.
However, their tenure is subject to retirement by rotation at the Annual
General Mesting in compliance with the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Code on Corporate Governance, under which they have to
retire by rotation and make themselves eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
financial statements, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies, applied them consistently, made judgments and estimation that are
prudent, fair and reasonable, ensured all applicable accounting standards are
followed and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The
Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and which enable the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the applicable accounting standards.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, the Model Code,
as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Specific enquiry has been made with all Directors and the Directors have
complied with the requirements set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2011.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Group was established in 1999. Currently, it
comprises three members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim who possesses professional accounting
qualification, Mr. Lam Kwong Siu and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher.
Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee adopted the term of reference in accordance with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices issued by the Stock Exchange. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. Two meetings have
been held by the Audit Committee during the year. Each Committee meeting
was provided with necessary financial information of the Group for
consideration, review and assessment of major issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the members of the Audit
Committee met twice and their attendance is as follows:
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Attendance
Name of member RE BB HERE
LEUNG Hok Lim (Chairman) RE®(EE) 2
LAM Kwong Siu ME K 1
CHEUNG Wah Fung, Christopher oREEIE 2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim and final financial results for
the year 2011. The Audit Committee considers the financial statement to be
complied with the appropriate financial standards and the law regulations and
with enough disclosure has been made.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERBRE (BA)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for recommending candidates to fill
vacancies in the Board based on their qualifications, abilities and potential
contribution to our Company and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment, re-election and removal of directors to the Board. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on our
Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee was formed by the Group in March 2005. The
Committee currently comprises three members, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors namely Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher, Mr.
Leung Hok Lim and Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, whereas Mr. Cheung Wah Fung,
Christopher was nominated as the Chairman of the committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Group established its Remuneration Committee in March 2005. The
Committee currently comprises three members, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, Mr. Leung Hok Lim
and Mr. Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher. Mr. Lam Kwong Siu is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee adopted the
term of reference in accordance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices issued by the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee met
while required as to review the emolument policy and the benefits of the
Executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the General
Manager of the Group about their proposals relating to remuneration package
and other human resources issues of the Directors and senior management
of the Group. The emoluments of Directors are based on each Director’s skill,
knowledge and involvement in the Group’s affairs, the Group’s performance
and profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Messr. HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng regarding their independence and objectivity and had a meeting
with HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, the external auditors of the Company, to
discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.
In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised
as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be
nominated for appointment as the auditors of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company paid Messr. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng, the external auditors of the Company, HK$495,000
as audit fees (2010: HK$460,000).

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 38 to 39 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s management believes that risk management is an essential
component of the Group’s administrative structure. The management assists
the Board in evaluating material risk exposure existing in the Group’s
business, including investment risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk etc, and
participates in designing and formulating appropriate risk management and
internal control measures, and to ensure its implementation in daily
operational management.

The management considers that the investment risk management measures
provide guarantee to the Group through its way of seeking new development
opportunities, as to secure reasonable return in every investment, to reduce
investment risks and to avoid possible loss attributable to investments.

The Group’s risk management towards liquidity aims to ensure that under all
circumstances there exists sufficient capital to fulfill repayment obligations of
all debts due, to maintain good creditworthiness, to finance reasonable
investment opportunities and to fuel business development. The Group’s
accounting department is responsible for daily financial activities and monitors
liquidity position from time to time to cope with business operation of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TERERBRE (BA)

CORPORATE CORRESPONDENCE

The Company commits to report to the shareholders of the Company the
Group’s corporate information in a timely and punctual way through notifying
or mailing to all shareholders via press release, Interim Report and Annual
Report. The circular of the Annual General Meeting will be distributed to all
shareholders of the Company at least 21 days prior to the meeting, which set
out the requirements and the procedure of the vote and the relevant details of
other proposed resolutions. The printed copies of the Group’s Annual Report
and Interim Report have been dispatched to all the shareholders.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which comprehensive
information about the Group is provided.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully compliant with
disclosure obligations stipulated under the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have
an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information that
is released by the Group.

CORPORATE MONITOR

The Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s overall corporate
reporting process and control system, while the corporate reporting standard
is handled by the accounting department, which makes regular review of
resources allocation and financial reporting system properly. Compliance with
Code on Corporate Governance Practices, the Listing Rules, SFO and other
applicable laws and regulations are handled by the Company Secretary. The
Company’s management meets with the Executive Directors regularly to
review and brief the reporting system, and the Audit Committee annually to
review and brief the reporting system.

A package of detailed materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
the Directors of the Company is provided to each newly appointed Director of
the Company, in which it is especially specified the applicable rules and
regulations (including the Listing Rules) that the first time appointed Directors
of the Company shall notice and understand.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

In respect of the securities transactions made by Directors and relevant
employee, the Company has adopted Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, the
Model Code, as its own of conduct regarding the standard for securities
transactions. Printed copies of the Model Code have been distributed to each
Director and relevant employee of the Group as stipulated therein. All the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the standards set out
therein.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive

information about the Group are also subject to compliance with guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B A% AR

B # & 3t 0 F o oA
Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujian Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 40 to 122, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

Notes 2011

Bt 5 =—B——-F
Revenue I 2= 5 14,647,166
Other income H b A 7 6,616,670
Other gains and losses Httlzm R &R 8 4,990,043
Employee benefits expense EIR/AXH 10 (5,866,796)
Depreciation e 15 (3,212,093)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment FEAEEREEE 16 (1,874,007)
Share of profit of an associate i —BEEE QT Z2RF 1,107,825
Other operating expenses Hihik=EH (10,334,753)
Profit before tax R %1 B0 g R 6,074,055
Income tax expense FrEHimx g (1,578,803)
Profit for the year 7N £ FE R A 10
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 [H W 2= -

Exchange differences on translating MEBINEREEZ
foreign operations b i, = %8 630,710

Other comprehensive income for the year 784 fE H b 2 @ I &
Total comprehensive income for the year ZEE2E UK HAEE
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (HK cents per share) EXR(FRBEWL 13
Diluted (HK cents per share) B3 (ZrREN) 13
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16,357,222

4,179,078

3,615,075

(6,447,114)

(3,198,191)

(1,874,007)

900,072

(10,269,497)

3,162,638

(536,121)

2,626,517

244,114

244,114

2,870,631

0.49
0.84 0.49



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B AR R &

At 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
RZEBE——F+ZHA=+—BUAETIITR)

Notes 2011 2010
BiaE —E——F —E—ZF
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment R &ﬁxﬁ 15 36,763,638 40,096,323
Prepaid lease payment TE & KT 16 26,079,923 27,953,930
Investment properties "EY % 17 29,800,000 28,675,000
Interest in an associate R— B E QR 2 s 19 11,531,435 10,038,350
104,174,996 106,763,603
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 93,678 143,036
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E fth & W BR 3K 21 9,029,332 3,002,037
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 22 43,289,903 37,914,888
52,412,913 41,059,961
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables Z 5 kHAMEMNER 23 5,363,032 3,450,697
Current tax liabilities BNEABi IR & & 1,449,273 —
3,450,697
Net current assets REBEEFE 37,609,264
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABDEE 149,775,604 144,372,867
Capital and reserves BARHE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 78 A & #5 5 A JE {5 # %5
Share capital A& X 25 66,780,000 66,780,000
Reserves & 68,059,830 62,933,868
Total equity RAfEREE 134,839,830 129,713,868
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEE FE 24 8,824,874 8,764,649
Trade and other payables B KEMEMEKRR 23 6,110,900 5,894,350
14,935,774 14,658,999
149,775,604 144,372,867
The consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to 122 were approved ZFER _T——_F=-A -+ -_HBEHEL
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2012 and are B L HX B 7 G B HRA R F408 2
signed on its behalf by: 190§ :
Wang Xiaowu Wang Ruilian
AR F 5 AR
Director Director
E £
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERERESHR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE_Z——F+-_A=+—8BFEUABTIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATHBEAEMN
Share-based
Share Share Translation compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
XAERB
;S B 17 18 RERE < @B RitEE ast
(Note 25) (Note 26) (Note 26)
(Hft 5 25) (Mt zE26) (Fff5E26)
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE—FTF
—H—H 66,597,500 576,304,933 (7,522,097) 268,640 (509,074,379) 126,574,597
Profit for the year 7N E i A — - — = 2,626,517 2,626,517
Other comprehensive income 7N 4F [ H iy
for the year ST — - 244,114 — - 244,114
Total comprehensive income AREEE2E
for the year W &% 48 K8 — — 244,114 - 2,626,517 2,870,631
Issue of ordinary shares under 2 1% (& & % i #&
employee share option plan 21T AR 182,500 354,780 — (268,640) — 268,640
At 31 December 2010 R-_ZT—ZF
+=A=+—8 66,780,000 576,659,713  (7,277,983) — (506,447,862) 129,713,868
Profit for the year 7N 5 A — — — — 4,495,252 4,495,252
Other comprehensive income 2N 4F [& H th,
for the year 2|k - - 630,710 - — 630,710
Total comprehensive income KEEEME
for the year I 2 42 5B - — 630,710 — 4,495,252 5,125,962

At 31 December 2011 R=B——%F
+=A=+—8 66,780,000 576,659,713  (6,647,273)

(501,952,610) 134,839,830
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Income tax expense

Bank interest income

Share of profit of an associate

Amortisation of prepaid lease payment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Gain arising on change in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on disposal of investment property

Loss on disposal and write-off of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised on property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised on
trade receivables

Impairment loss recognised on
other receivables

REXB2HERE
N2 F
FEIER

e R

RITHE A

FE1E — [ B & R m] 2 A
B B RIA

ME BELRRBZITE
BREMFERFERS

HEREME W

HERMEDE  BER
i < 1R FE AR

WE - BERREBZ
BB R R

FEWE 5 8RR BB B 1R HERR

H A 178 W BR SR 2 R 1B S 18 7 3R

4,495,252

1,578,803

(569,893)
(1,107,825)
1,874,007
3,212,093

(3,925,000)
(855,565)

75,428

175,990

82,118

59,774

Waiver of other payable HEENERRZEH R
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEPH2KERS
in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEEmL ()

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

B 5 NE R BR FRIE N
B 5 RE M ENRRZIE N

5,095,182

49,358
(6,169,187)
1,912,335

887,688
569,893
(69,305)

Cash generated by operations BEEBRERA
Interest received RPN

Income tax paid B RS

Net cash generated by operating activities REEBRESRAFE

2010
—E-FF

2,626,517

536,121

(362,639)

(900,072)
1,874,007
3,198,191

(3,115,000)

64,154

68,994
(1,078,405)

2,916,655

(42,223)
(579,659)
246,921

2,541,694
362,639

1,388,276 2,904,333
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

mEBRERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment
Decrease in time deposits

REXBIRETE
BENE BERRE
W T

(1,082,487)
18,584,280

3,655,565 001,

Proceeds from disposal of investment property KEHEREWEZREBIIE
Net cash generated by investing activities REXEB2RERANFE
Cash flows from financing activities RMEEK 2 IE ERE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares REBITEBR

Net cash generated by financing activities MEEXEBK2RERAFE
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBEESEEMNFE
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FHAzRERBREZEE

of the year
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes

TE & 1 8 > 228

5,043,841

37,914,888
331,174

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year, representing bank
balances and cash

FHEZASRAEEE
METEBRERE

43,289,903
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17,601,793

268,640

268,640

20,674,766

17,247,800
(7,678)
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Statement of Financial Position
B 7 AR OR 3/

At 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
RZEBE——F+ZHA=+—BUAETIITR)

Notes 2011 2010
B 5 —E——F —E-TF
Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME  WBE REE 15 82,121 146,953
Investment properties SRS 17 29,800,000 28,675,000
Interests in subsidiaries B B A B i 18 1,065,898 765,300
30,948,019 29,587,253

Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H fh fE Y BR 3R 21 4,510,085 1,040,651
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBERE 22 41,843,022 37,267,428
46,353,107 38,308,079

Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B o5 hHEMENER 23 1,076,747 967,586

Net current assets

RBEETFE 45,276,360 37,340,493

Total assets less current liabilities

BEERRBERE 76,224,379 66,927,746

Capital and reserves BARR#E
Equity attributable to owners ZINNECIES TSN
of the Company eI =
Share capital % 7 25 66,780,000 66,780,000
Reserves i 26 7,159,304 (1,689,129)
Total equity RAESAE 73,939,304 65,090,871
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIE B & 24 2,285,075 1,836,875
66,927,746
Wang Xiaowu Wang Ruilian
FAR B Yol
Director Director
EF EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT Rk MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

GENERAL

Fujian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate
holding company is HC Technology Capital Company Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its ultimate
holding company is f@iZZEEEZ (£E) AMR2AR], a state-owned
corporation in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company is Unit 1216, 12/F., China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are investment holding, property investment
in Hong Kong and hotel operations in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is same as the functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FEH

A

E?ET&,@{I%%TE%EJJ

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BHEEQN(EEMBKR
(“HKFRSs”) HEH )

The following new and revised HKFRSs and Interpretations issued by REEF KREBHEAEVEHREDER
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) HEBSeTMASHEMSEESNERE
have been applied by the Group in the current year and have affected MERZEVNRBEEOF MBS E
the presentation and disclosures set out in these consolidated financial B2 A ZEHI M&EIET %8|
statements. The application of these new and revised Standards and FRBEAERATE 2 S8 RB MikE
Interpretations has had no impact on the Group’s financial performance WRETE-

and positions for the current and prior years.

HKFRS (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 BB RELER —E—ZTFHEM
(BETA) ZBEBWBHRE
AR 2R B
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from EEMBHEER HEREAE S
Comparative HKFRS 7 F15% (BETA) REAVBRE
Disclosures for First-time Adopters A F 7R R
HFHEZ
BR#AE
HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009)  Related Party Disclosures BB ER] B 5 R R
B 2457
(ZZEZNEF
KAEET)
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues =z o | T R& 5 48
3258 ({EFTA8)
HK(FRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum BB (BB EHRE RIEESEK
(Amendments) Funding Requirement ZEZE® ZTEf =
—RRBE145%
(& 5T 4)
HK(FRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities BB (BB BHRE URATAEE
with Equity Instruments 2REZET) =N
—REE195%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S 3Rk MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FE H
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS % )
(“HKFRSS”) (CONTINUED) &%

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

AEBRHARGEAEVBHRRAERANLT
EBEMERRER I REETEE

effective. MRS 2R -
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of EAR PR EER EVEY LT
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters' FE15% (BT A) AR
—BRESBIK
PTG =/E2S
mEZEE
H '
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of EBER % AR WE-EESH
Financial Assets' E75 (BFTA) B
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial WEE —IKEE R
Assets and Financial Liabilities* BEELER
=
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® EA PR EER SR T AS
ek
HKFRS 9 and Mandatory Effective Date of ES S HE R EAUMBRE
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures® FORKRETH AEBIE 95k
CCHEN) BHIEITHER
R 5 RS
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements* BB ISR R 4= ABFFRER R
E105%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements* EBMEMELED SEBELH
E1158
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in SRS ER RNEME ‘QE £
Other Entities” FE1258 ZHER
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement* FBIEREES NFEZFE!
E135
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Items of BEGHERNE 1SR Ht2EWKAER
Other Comprehensive Income? CCHES) 7252
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of BB GETER BIERIIA - e
Underlying Assets® 2125 (BFIA) HEAE®

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits* S et R E195 EEEA
(Z——#
£<<< & HT)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements® St ERIFE27H BYPBHRKR
:%——i
KAEET)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and & @?r HEBIE 289 IHEREL AT
Joint Ventures* — = ——fF kE&EDE
£<<< |Az HT)
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and GETERER KESHEEK
Financial Liabilities® (flé} R A) SRAaREe
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production B (BRMBRE BREES
Phase of a Surface Mine* 2EZEY) FEREZ
-2 E 2058 IR B A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FEH
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BHE
(“HKFRSS”) (CONTINUED) o

AREERIERY
2 81 ([ & 72 Bt 55 8]
7 )

N
=
—_
I
~
—~

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet CEMAEERERNHT R

effective (continued) BETEBYBHREZER @)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. ! R-_E——FLtA—BHZ2BHEAKZ
FEHAR £ R -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. 2 RZE—Z—ZF+tA—BEHZzBHABKZ
FEHAR £ R -

N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012. 2 R-ZE——F— A —HaZEHBRKRZ
FEHRE ER -

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 4 R-_E—=F—A— B Z2BHEKRZ
F[ZHAR £ R -

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. g R-_ZE—NFE— A —HelZ2EHBZ
FZHAR £ R -

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. € RZTE—RAF—A— B Z2BHARZ
FEHARE E R -

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure requirements for EEM ISR ELEBFE75 2 (&5 2 0

transactions involving transfers of financial assets. These amendments HBREMEEEB IR IEERTE -

are intended to provide greater transparency around risk exposures EZ SEITEEMREREEREEME

when a financial asset is transferred but the transferor retains some ZEARBZ é @ TR E 2 #1E E &

level of continuing exposure in the asset. The amendments also require ;fg B ReRRAEZERE - ZS5B

disclosures where transfers of financial assets are not evenly distributed HIPIES 9 EZ AN EEE EWIE

throughout the period. BHEDMmEELIKE -

The directors anticipate that the application of the amendments to EETEHESM B RELERNETENZ

HKFRS 7 will affect the Group’s disclosures regarding transfers of ZBIIHAREBRREESHEEIRED

financial assets in the future. 2 WEREBRKEATE -

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the 2009 4F 5| i & & B 7% ¥ &5 2 Al 2957

classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 amended ZEBEDHEBEGEZHET - R20104F

in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and BT 2B BHREEREIREH B

measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition. B ESBEAE LK IFER

HIE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B S R R Y AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

° The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates to the
presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial liability
(designated as at fair value through profit or loss) attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

50 FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2011

SR ERAMBREENw
15 4R 55 R 0%k 2 £ B B R

BREMBHESENEOREZRKER
BEEERERI2H LA -
ERRAEIBENZFBCHER
TREE ARBERALAFE
AFECLHER BEREEAHR
ERZEBEAFEZEBRE
AEaBEenErRREERS
ZARERMBZEBRE  —RR
HE et HHARBREHEXE
AE-FBREMEBREMBRAR
ERHEASHHBEERTIRAF
EFfE UM REFEVBRE
ERIZEN BERAEL T RE
BEREMEZERERANZIR
ARE(WHFBEEE) Z2ERERA
FEZE M- RERVIERKRAE
BB UA o

BREMBMELERFIR T EE
AVERGEBEMS 2RMEBEZ
DERFEZEREIEHESD
BmEEJEEERAFEFABRZRE
¢)ETHA“@sz§% I
BEEFH 25K - A5E iR
BEBMBHRELELS 95)??%1%
EEEAFEFTAEREZS®
aE BEBRZAGBZEERRE
BremBEATEZE  FEAMm
%EW%%EW’ﬁEHW%E%
mEAERZEEEERRE
i EE SESHRBEBARGTE
it BlZERm - BENEMEE
ZEERBREH s ATFTEEZS  H
BAGENOBEERE T
*m%%@Euz%M%S%ﬁﬁam&
AFEFABZEZSREAER
FEEZH A2 HEBEEREFT 2
7l o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)

HE-_Z——F+-A=+—BFEMABTIR)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may
have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities (e.g. the Group’s investments in
redeemable notes that are currently classified as available-for-sale
investments may have to be measured at fair value at the end of
subsequent reporting periods, with changes in the fair value being
recognised in profit or loss). Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements
and HK (SIC) - Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS
10 includes a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’'s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex
scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The
scope of HKFRS 18 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general, the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all
assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 183 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning 1
January 2013 and that the application of the new Standard may affect
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)

HE-_Z——F+-A=+—BFEMABTIR)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of other
comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the general
principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities should reflect the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the entity expects to recover the
carrying amount of an asset. Specifically, under the amendments,
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are presumed to be
recovered through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes,
unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The amendments to HKAS 12 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2012. The directors anticipate that the application
of the amendments to HKAS 12 in future reporting periods may result
in adjustments to the amounts of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
prior years regarding the Group’s investment properties of which the
carrying amounts are presumed to be recovered through sale.
However, the directors have not yet performed a detailed analysis of
the impact of the application of the amendments and hence have not
yet quantified the extent of the impact.

AREERIERY
2 81 ([ & 72 Bt 55 8]

EEEHERE IR ZETR - ——
FLA-RAEZKABZFESRRAE
Mo BEABANARRETFER &
tEEKEIRE 2RI F BN -

_\

EREGHENFE 2R ZEFTITREER
sHERIFE125% — R R A2 FISMER - BD
BERERBEENEEHBERBZFER
RRERBHKEEEREE. 2T AR
EEZHBER - ABME  REZF
R RABEEREMS  HREE
S ERFIORIKREY X IER R FE
E’*'JJEZ&QW%{E’*“F%T&E&E&E
WE - EZBERERE TIERE R
1Rl &

EREHEMNFI2RZEBITR-F —
:E—E—EI‘JZZ%F#W“ZEF%%E
B-EFEH AKERKIEEER
BEBHERBDZEENEMS  RARK
BENRERTE G ENE12R 2B
AR ERANBEFERRB I ELR
FEBESHEFELAR - A BEFDK
HERWET ZZEETHANT A
B RBEEBLATE ZKF -

BEZRAERAR —T——FF®) 53



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FTEEHHE@m

(CONTINUED)

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly and indirectly,
controls the composition of the board of directors, controls more than
half of the voting power or holds more than half of the issued share
capital. Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified
impairment losses. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in
which case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B S R R Y AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group losing
significant influence over that associate, any retained investment is
measured at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with
HKAS 39. The difference between the previous carrying amount of the
associate attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses significant
influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE@m

(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the course of the ordinary activities, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when services are
provided.

Income from granting the management right of the Group’s hotel is
recognised in accordance with the terms of the contract.

Management fee income is recognised on quarterly basis for the fixed
portion and yearly basis for floating portion over the terms of contract.

Interest income form a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating leases. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE@m

(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to
assets under construction for future productive use, which are
included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to
hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting policies
below); and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S 3Rk MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements
Share-based payment transactions of the Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that are vested immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit
or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE@m

(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S 3Rk MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including hotel property held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost or fair value at the date of revaluation, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the
date of revaluation less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is
stated at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent impairment losses, if any. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do
not differ materially from those that would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated under the heading of properties revaluation reserve
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously
expensed. A decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation
of such land and buildings is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property, the attributable
revaluation surplus remaining in the properties revaluation reserve is
transferred directly to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE@m

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Hotel property is interests in buildings and their integral fixed plant
which are collectively used in the operations of the hotel, and are stated
at cost less subsequent depreciation and impairment losses. The
related repairs and maintenance attributable to hotel properties are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period which they are incurred. The costs of significant improvements
are capitalised.

Depreciation of the hotel property is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of the hotel property over the remaining lease
terms.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is recognised so
as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the reducing balance method at a principal annual
rate of 20%.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Impairment of tangible assets other than goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE@m

(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-first-out basis. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments
other than those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE@m

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as
well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other than
financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S 3Rk MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the
date of transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair value of
those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person,

(@  has controls or joint control over the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B RS SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=Z+—BFEEWBTIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)

(i)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

@

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (); and

a person identified in (i)(@) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S 3Rk MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that management has made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions and
underlying assumptions adopted for capitalisation of the income
derived from the existing tenancies with due provision for the
reversionary income potential of the property interests.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of assets

The Group assesses annually whether assets have any indication of
impairment, in accordance with the relevant accounting policies. Where
an indication of impairment is noted, the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment will be estimated based on value-in-use
calculations or scrap value. These calculations and valuations require
the use of judgement and estimates on future operating cash flows and
discount rates adopted and estimated market value of the scraps.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B RS SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=Z+—BFEEWBTIR)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. EEGITHE R &5 ARA
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BEEMNEERE@m
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar natures and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables

The policy for doubtful receivables of the Group is based on the
ongoing evaluation of the collectability and aging analysis of the trade
and other receivables and on the management’s judgement.
Considerable judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness, the past collection
history of each debtor and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate. If the financial conditions
of the Group’s debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their abilities to make payments, additional impairment losses of
trade and other receivables may be required.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and other
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in certain provision for income
taxes for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognised liabilities for
potential tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amount that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally relate to tax
losses, depends on management’s expectation of future taxable profits
that will be available against which tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their utilisation may be different.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S 3Rk MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

5. REVENUE 5. W&
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Gross rental income from letting of IR B Y
investment properties el A4R%E 1,410,874 1,272,720
Revenue from hotel operations B S U S 13,236,292 15,084,502
14,647,166 16,357,222
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. 2EEH
Information reported to the Board of the Company, being the chief MERSPEEDBEXRBAFTHRAERQ A
operating decision maker, for the purpose of resources allocation and EERAEERERFE)MERZE
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of services B HlER RS Rt R .
provided.
The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as AEBBERBMEHREERFESHKR
follows: EZEERAARABHT ¢
Property investment — the rental of investment properties mEKE — HHEREYE
Hotel operations - the operation of the operation of BIEXER — BEEE
hotel
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B RS SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=Z+—BFEEWBTIR)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 7EHERmWm

Segment revenues and results THEWREREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable segments:

DT ¢

Property investment Hotel operations

AEERUBARHS BRI D 2 R R EE

Consolidated

MERE B JE ¥ wEe
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——f —T-TF ZB——F —T-THF —B——F —T-TF
REVENUE W 25
Revenue from external customers §h & & F I 25 AADEYZE 1272720 REREXERLPE 15,084,502 IMENZYALN 16,357,222
RESULT ES
Segment result before other R E b U2/
gains/(losses) (BB Mo
3 1,250,381 753,354 3,478,525 3,728,362 4,728,906 4,481,716
Gain arising on change in fair BEWENTE
value of investment properties g KXPINOM 3,115,000 KEPINOM 3,115,000
Gain on disposal of investment & & & ¥ % g 25
property 855,565 855,565 —
Impairment loss on property, M- BE R
plant and equipment REREZ
B R TER (175,990) (175,990) —
Segment result DI 6,030,946 KGRI 3,302,535 MECNELKCZM 9,333,481 AL
Unallocated income KD WA 569,893 362,639
Central administration costs M g 1T B AR AR (CRCEYAVYN  (5,696,789)
Share of profit of an associate JE {5 — R Bt
NI oy | 1,107,825 900,072
Profit before tax K B2 A & A (XNl 3,162,638
Income tax expense FrE B (1,578,803) IENGEERPA)!
Profit for the year NG Z A LWL LV 2,626,517
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011, income from granting the
management right of the Group's hotel of HK$5,897,143 (2010:
HK$2,698,392) is included in the segment result before other gains/
(losses) of hotel operations reportable segment.

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the current
year (2010: nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of
bank interest income and other unallocated income, central
administration costs including director’s remuneration, share of profit of
an associate and income tax expense. This is the measurement
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e B RS SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 7EE@®
Segment assets and liabilities PEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AREFBRAHFHEZD CEERARE
reportable segments: DITAR :
Property investment Hotel operations Consolidated
L8 BIEEL =a
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

-2 —_Z-F B —T-TF Z—BE——H —T-TF

ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 76,235,229 EEGYAIKCONCZE 68,816,051 70,652,604 WELNW0N 137,782,636
Interest in an associate R— R R A
2w AW KL 10,038,350
Unallocated corporate assets 7 # 5 2 & & & 5,194 2,578
Consolidated total assets REBEE AR YAC il 147,823,564
LIABILITIES afE
Segment liabilities HEERE (1,076,747) (11,029,409) (8,362,460) MPALAED) (9,330,047)
Unallocated corporate rEEHNBIBE
liabilities CXPARP R (8,779,649)

Consolidated total liabilities 4R & 42 & & (PANZERY (18,109,696)

Other segment information Hth 5 & %

Capital additions &R0 125,440 957,047 1,082,487
Depreciation of property, ME - BE R

plant and equipment R E 64,832 39,824 IEEREY®IGM 3,158,367 CPAPXCKE 3,198,191
Amortisation of prepaid TEfF &R

lease payment #5H 1,874,007 1,874,007 1,874,007 1,874,007
Gain arising on change in fair & & %% A F (&

value of investment Ik 25

properties [REPLKO[ON  (3,115,000) [REPLHD[OR  (3,115,000)
Gain on disposal of HEREYE

investment property I #5 (855,565) (855,565) —
Loss on disposal and HE R

write-off of property, B M2

plant and equipment B8R 75,428 75,428 4,787
Impairment loss on trade ERBESHERZ

receivables BB B B HER 82,118 82,118 64,154
Impairment loss on other Hib R Z

receivables VEREY SRR 59,774 59,774 68,994
Impairment loss on property, ¥ % - B & &

plant and equipment 2R ERBERER 175,990 175,990 —
Waiver of other payable HEMBRRZ

NP (1,078,405) (1,078,405)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B S R Y AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. PEERm@®
For the purposes of monitoring segment BEESEBERERSERBZ
performance and allocating resources between EREE :
segments:
All assets are allocated to operating segments other than certain bank GEERTEGEN —BBE AR 2
balances and cash and interest in an associate. w2 FMBEEEY E EE EREHEED
$H o
All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain BRELELTHEEEHNELEHIERE
balances of current liabilities and deferred tax liabilities. - FTEBEHEUESEERBHHRHE-
Geographical information ih & & #
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the People’s NER 7 E2FERKEERWETE R R
Republic of China (excluding Hong Kong) (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong. — B (EBEBRIN ([FER]) REE -
The Group’s revenue from external customers and information about its AREFERBINTIBZEEL 2 Wz KB B
non-current assets by geographical location are detailed below: BEIDZIERDEEERFBLOT ¢
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REMIBEF Z W= FRBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010

—EF——-F —_T-ZTF =ZZEB--—-F —ET-F
PRC =2 13,236,292 15,084,502 74,292,875 77,941,650
Hong Kong BB 1,410,874 1,272,720 29,882,121 28,821,953

14,647,166 16,357,222 RIZRFERME 106,763,603
No external customers of the Group contributed over 10% of the AEERZZE——FRZZT—ZTFEY
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010. BRENBEFPRAEE TR BIR10%.2

SE U
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

7. OTHER INCOME

e B S R R B AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

7. HimA

2011

2010
—E-ZF

Income from granting the management right
of the Group’s hotel

BAKBEBEEEERRTER
REMEEZBA

(notes (i), (i) and (iii)) (BT EEG) » (i) % (iii) 5,897,143 2,698,392
Bank interest income RITF B U A 569,893 362,639
Waiver of other payable HENERARZEH R - 1,078,405
Others Hih 149,634 39,642

6,616,670 4,179,078
Notes: k=3

(i

(i)

On 4 March 2008, Yan Hei Limited (“Yan Hei”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company and Xiamen South East Asia Company Limited (“Xiamen
Plaza”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Yan Hei Limited, entered into an
agreement with Fujian Sunshine Group Limited (“‘Sunshine Group”) and &
FIEEREE IR AR AT (Xiamen Friendship International Co., Ltd)
(“Friendship International”). Pursuant to the agreement, Sunshine Group
agreed to transfer the management right of Xiamen South East Asia Hotel
(the “Hotel”), a hotel owned by Xiamen Plaza to Friendship International.

On 4 March 2008, Xiamen Plaza entered into a management contract
(“Management Contract”) with Friendship International in relation to the
appointment of Friendship International to manage the daily operation of
the Hotel for a period of five years. Friendship International has paid
RMB5 million as security deposit to Xiamen Plaza, which is refundable
upon expiry of the Management Contract.

Under the Management Contract and there will not be a transfer of
ownership of the Hotel at or after the completion of the Management
Contract. Xiamen Plaza is entitled to receive income from Friendship
International which is calculated in accordance with the terms of the
Management Contract.

(i

(i)

RZZEENF=ZAEBARAZ2EH
BRALCBERAR(TCEDRERE
RABZEMBAREMREEAHE
EERAR(RBDEBEEGXEEE
RN ([R5 M ) o B P 2B S
BERAR(THEDRZ—HBGE &
b BAEEAEERHRERE ZE
FREEREECEE)AEEEET
O ©

R-ZTZTNFE=ANA - RBEBES
VEBZELEEAAEEZEEA
FLEEEEARANAF BHEERR
B 2+ A R # 5,000,000 7T 1E & 1R &5 1%
& WAIREEAREBHERE -

REEEAR  BEXRTEEERS
RIFEAR 2 KEE - CEARAHE
WBR—ERERARGRFEZER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMWuEREIE
2011 2010
—E-—-F —E-EF

Gain arising on change in fair value of wE N T E W=
investment properties 3,925,000 3,115,000
Impairment loss recognised on property, Yz BE K2R E
plant and equipment BB R (175,990) —
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables & 4 BR % 2 Jl (B &5 18 #E 32 (82,118) (64,154)
Impairment loss recognised on other receivables b & I BR 78 2 Rl (B /5 18 8 32 (59,774) (68,994)
Loss on disposal and write-off of property, HERMIEME  BE REE
plant and equipment Z B (75,428) (4,787)
Net foreign exchange gains 5 SN Y 7 602,788 538,010
Gain on disposal of investment property HE—EREERT 855,565 —
4,990,043 3,515,075
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FigPiMX
2011 2010
—E2-—-F T -TF
Current tax: B HA R 18 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EATIS R 1,518,578 18,137
Deferred tax: IEERIA
Current year REE (228,431) (80,550)
Attributable to a change in tax rate FEAG B R o & 288,656 598,534
60,225 517,984
Tax charge for the year RNEF RS H 1,578,803 536,121
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) of the EBFE IR EF AN G ERED R F
estimated assessable profit. 16.5% (ZZF —FF : 16.5%) 51 & -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Company had agreed losses
brought forward to set off against the assessable profits and its Hong
Kong subsidiaries did not have any assessable profits for the year (2010:
Nil).

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2010:
22%) on the assessable profit of the Group’s PRC subsidiary as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations in the PRC.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
Enterprise Income Tax Rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries was
increased from 15% to 25% progressively from 1 January 2008
onwards. The deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the tax
rates are expected to apply to the respective periods when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2011

Hong Kong
BB

Profit before tax B % Al Va2 £ 2,113,555

REAMEFTER R 348,737

R FIE B 2 B
-

EARMIAR 2B
By 488
=

i A R 1 0 E R 1)
BB BEEECZ2

Tax at applicable tax rates
Tax effect of expenses
not deductible for tax purpose 954,924

Tax effect of income not taxable

(1,091,924)

for tax purpose

Effect on opening deferred tax
resulting from an increase
in applicable tax rate

Tax effect of tax loss KRB IE B 2 B

not recognised =21 236,463

FARBAZRER
Bt &

Tax charge at effective

tax rate for the year 448,200

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B S R R B AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

9.

%

B

16.50

45.18

(51.66)

P 18 % B X )

B R AR A B A R L AR RS R R
HEFERRBEN REFENE QA
Il 5T R B A - #R3 ER BE S R
KARBAMNEHRARERB (T —F
T

EFERNBARMNEEMSHERGER
BB 2 TSRS B R R 25% (=
T—TF 2% )MEE °

BEPEARLMBECERESHE (R
BREDERIEREABREKSN B2
TENFEF—A—BRPBENBARZAE
B RS H15%F 518 M E25% © iR iE
RIBESEIEAZE  URBBEHREHE
BESHENEHEAEZSERNERSHM
HRABMEEME-

RAFENHRBAXHEESZHEER
B s A B BR 4 T

—F——F

PRC %
Gl B

Total %
FoRc)

3,960,500 6,074,055

990,126 25.00 1,338,863 22.04

545,621 13.78 1,500,545 24.70

(693,801) (17.52) (1,785,725) (29.40)

288,657 288,657

236,463

1,130,603 1,578,803
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e R M (B

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE_Z——F+-_A=+—8BFEUABTIR)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CoNTINUED)

9. FTEBIRE X

2010 e
Hong Kong % PRC % Total %
A ANt FE BERL wE Bnmk
Profit before tax B 15 Al g Al 1,469,925 1,692,713 3,162,638
Tax at applicable tax rates REBAMEGTEB R 242,537  16.50 372,396  22.00 614,933  19.44
Tax effect of expenses not AAHFIEE 2 B
deductible for tax purpose P 721,136  49.05 1,775,185 104.87 2,496,321  78.93
Tax effect of income not taxable ~ M\ZERFHIE B 7 H 7
for tax purpose 2 (1,278,462) (86.97) (1,699,292) (100.39)  (2,977,754) (94.15)
Effect on opening deferred tax I8 FA B R 38 N B B
resulting from an increase FYREEFIBEE
in applicable tax rate - - — - 598,534  35.36 508,534  18.93
Tax effect of tax loss RERBBEEE
not recognised B w e 838,615  57.05 — — 838,615  26.52
Utilisation of tax losses &) F % AT R TR
previously not recognised ZTIEEE = = (1,034,528)  (61.12)  (1,034,528) (32.71)
Tax charge at effective FARBFE S &
tax rate for the year ERT= 523,826  35.64 12,295 0.73 536,121 16.95
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

& B S R R B AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

10. XFERF

Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Gross rental income from investment properties

Less: Direct operating expenses from
investment properties that generated
rental income during the year

Employee benefits expense
(including directors’ remunerations):
Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes

Depreciation of hotel property
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease payment

Total depreciation and amortisation

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as other operating
expenses

Share of tax of an associate
(included in share of profit of an associate)

2010
—E—ZF
AEERFSHBR(GEA) :
KEMERS WA B (1,410,874) (1,272,720)
W AFEERTEERE Z
HeRAMELEZ
PN 84,365
B TR
(BREEEM2) :
& T H fib 18 A 5,410,009 6,008,721
R RET B3R 456,787 440,393
6,447’1 14
HIEMEZITE 2,449,064 2,449,064
By BEERREBEZITE 763,029 749,127
3,212,093 3,198,191
BT E SR IE i 1,874,007 1,874,007
AR YT E N5 5,072,198
% R B & 495,000 460,000
FERABRAAHMELE A
49,451 68,980
FEAE— & AR IE
(BIEEREGE—EEE AR
2 3 A ) 391,064 322,586
ERERAERAR —E——4&4% 83



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S 3Rk MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1. EEMWE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2010: eight) HRNEMNARAT 8 (ZE—ZF : 8f7)
directors were as follows: EEMeRBUMT -
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
other benefit
Name of directors Fees benefits schemes Total
ek EREHE
EENF we Hi 1z A HE wmm
2011 —_E——fF
Executive directors HITESE
Wang Xiaowu EDNE 650,000 650,000
Wang Ruilian T B bR 293,333 293,333
Liu Xiaoting 23T 268,333 268,333
Non-executive directors HFEHITEE
Feng Qiang 5 8
Ye Tao zE
Independent BYFHTEE
non-executive directors
Lam Kwong Siu K E Ik 100,000 100,000
Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher R Z i 100,000 100,000
Leung Hok Lim prug==9 3 100,000 100,000
Total emoluments & 300,000 1,211,666 - 1,511,666
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

1M1 EEME @

Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefit
Name of directors Fees other benefits schemes Total
ek EIRETE
ey G we E b 18 A R k)
2010 —E—FF
Executive directors HITEE
Wang Xiaowu ENE — 650,000 — 650,000
Wang Ruilian T im kR — 520,000 — 520,000
Liu Xiaoting 2/\T — 455,000 — 455,000
Non-executive directors JEHITEE
Feng Qiang 5 58 = = = =
Ye Tao = — — — —
Independent BUHHTESE
non-executive directors
LLam Kwong Siu MEJK 100,000 — — 100,000
Cheung Wah Fung, Christopher REIR 100,000 — — 100,000
Leung Hok Lim Y= 100,000 — — 100,000
Total emoluments B 2 300,000 1,625,000 — 1,925,000

There were no arrangements under which the directors of the Company

have waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the directors of the Company, as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2010:

Nil).

o] B =

MEZRERAH

ARABEERELRHILHEXRAELKRE

HE_T——F+-_A=+—HB&FEH
Al AEESEINTEESEMMEA
FEMBREE2HME RN REEETRA
ZHE(CE-TF &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B S R R Y AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three
(2010: three) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosure in note 11 above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2010: two) individuals were as follows:

12. EEM 2

i

ELIEZ&a#HEEY ZR(ZT—F
FZR)REF REZME S AR
HFNMZEEHecAN - HBWmA(ZT—
TERMB)ALZEHFMAT

9

2011 2010

Salaries and other benefits e kHEMER
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes RONET &I R

628,040 602,950
20,552 21,875

648,592 624,825

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including the directors
of the Company, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2010: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

13.

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BIRER

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2011
S

Earnings ZF

BFFTEAGRERRF]
(RFEEARRFEAZ
J& {5 & 7))

TERREEEE 2B

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per
share (profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company)

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

Earnings for the purpose of diluted BN ESREERT

earnings per share 4,495,252

Number of shares BREZE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares Tl MEFLHEGTETRAR

for the purpose of basic earnings per share 534,240,000

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: KRAFC BT ZERES
Share options issued by the Company TERAIEEE T E

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for

TR INE TS
the purpose of diluted earnings per share

f 2 7 5E

534,240,000

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of HK$8,848,433
(2010: loss of HK$1,258,991).

MEZRERAH

BREARBERNDIRENATARF
KA ARGRNEUIRAHE

2010
=t S ¥

—=

2,626,517

2,626,517

533,708,000

365,578

534,073,578

14. X2 AFEAEHERF

A QR E A FE L 4 78,848,43378 T
(ZZ2—= 4 : 181,258,991/ L) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S 3Rk MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERKE

Group KE
Plant,
machinery
Hotel Furniture Leasehold and
property and fixtures improvements equipment Total
FM R = =
ipERy/ S ®E MEEE RFE R
COST AN
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZTF—H—H 92,391,462 3,529,969 6,242,842 5,156,812 107,321,085
Additions NE = 43,183 101,260 938,044 1,082,487
Disposals == — (830,808) (105,956)  (1,757,837)  (2,694,601)
Exchange adjustments E & ZE5 — 137,964 241,852 199,184 579,000
At 31 December 2010 RIZE—FF
+=A=+—8 92,391,462 2,880,308 6,479,998 4,536,203 106,287,971
Disposals k== — (637,361) (110,030) (112,799) (760,190)
Exchange adjustments PE & =50 - 104,178 234,347 162,564 501,089
At 31 December 2011 N_E——4F
+—-—A=+—H 92,391,462 2,447,125 6,604,315 4,585,968 106,028,870
DEPRECIATION AND TERBE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2010 R-_ZT—ZTF—H—H 53410531 3,469,463 4127547 4225110 65,232,651
Provided for the year REEHE 2,449,064 24,075 464,876 260,176 3,198,191
Eliminated on disposals o 65 BRF 38R T2 M 8H
of assets — (828,858) (105,956)  (1,755,000)  (2,689,814)
Exchange adjustments P& = =28 — 136,120 152,675 161,825 450,620
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-—TF
+=A=+—8H 55,859,595 2,800,800 4,639,142 2,892,111 66,191,648
Provided for the year REEFFE 2,449,064 16,759 410,032 336,238 3,212,093
Eliminated on disposals H £ B T 8 A2 B gl
of assets = (527,334) (64,144) (93,284)  (684,762)
Impairment losses recognised 18 z BR BZ I2 2
in profit or losses B FE R — — 175,990 - 175,990
Exchange adjustments fER=% — 94,463 170,892 104,908 370,263
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
+-—A=+—H 58,308,659 2,384,688 5,381,912 3,239,973 69,265,232
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2011 R=T——&
F=H=+—~H 34,082,803 62,437 1,272,403 1,345,995 36,763,638
At 31 December 2010 R_E—Z4F
+=A=+—H” 36,531,867 79,508 1,840,856 1,644,092 40,096,323
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(CONTINUED)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

& B S R R B AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

15. % - BERZE @

Company AT
Furniture Leasehold Office
and fixtures improvements  equipment Total
HEH R
®E MEEE BRLEXRE BE
COST R 2
At 1 January 2010 R-—Z—ZTF—HF—H 29,180 105,956 102,626 237,762
Additions N E 15,480 101,260 8,700 125,440
Disposals & = (105,956) = (105,956)
At 31 December 2010 R-_E—Z4F
and 31 December 2011 +-—A=+—H8K

—E-—fF

+—-—A=+—H 44,660 101,260 111,326 257,246
DEPRECIATION AND HERRE

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2010 R-_ZE—ZFF—F—H 12,560 105,956 57,909 176,425
Provided for the year KEEHFE 5,130 25815 9,379 39,824
Eliminated on disposals of assets | & B ¥ £5 % it #4 — (105,956) — (105,956)
At 31 December 2010 R-E—Z4F

+=-—A=+—H 17,690 25,515 67,288 110,293
Provided for the year REFZHE 5,394 50,630 8,808 64,832
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F

+=-—A=+—H 23,084 75,945 76,096 175,125
CARRYING AMOUNTS R H (B
At 31 December 2011 N-—E——&

+=A=+—8 21,576 25,315 35,230 82,121
At 31 December 2010 RZZTE—ZF

+—-—A=+—8H 26,970 75,945 44,038 146,953
The hotel property is situated in the PRC and held under medium-term MR B ZBEDSET RP BELYS
lease. Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S 3Rk MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERFZXE @

(CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amount of assets including property, plant and equipment
and leasehold land used in the Group’s hotel segment. In performing
impairment testing, the directors of the Company reviewed the carrying
amounts of these assets by reference to a valuation performed by
Norton Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals Limited is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The recoverable amount of this
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) is determined based on a value in use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period and a
discount rate of 9.10% per annum. The key assumptions for the value
in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth in
revenue, direct and other operating costs during the period. The
management estimates discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU.

In the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment is considered to be less than its carrying amount
as at 31 December 2011, and due to strong competition with other
hotels established near the Hotel in Xiamen, an impairment loss of
HK$175,990 (2010: Nil) in respect of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 16. AT HEMNE

Group KE

coSsT WA

At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 RZE—ZFTF-—H—RB ZE—ZFF

and 31 December 2011 +-_A=+—-HKk=_ZT—Ft+_-_HA=+—H 86,000,000

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT e R ORE

At 1 January 2010 R-ZZE—ZTF—H—H 56,172,063

Amortisation for the year NEE 2 #H 1,874,007

At 31 December 2010 RZZE-—ZTF+-_A=+—H 58,046,070

Amortisation for the year N [E 7 #EH 1,874,007

At 31 December 2011 R-_ZE——F+_A=+—H 59,920,077

CARRYING AMOUNT IREE

At 31 December 2011 R=Z——f+=ZHA=+—H 26,079,923

At 31 December 2010 RZE-—ZTFE+_A=+—H 27,953,930

Notes: Bt ez

0] Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement signed between the i) BEREMEEFAZEARTHER]) &
Xiamen Railway Department Company Limited (‘Railway Department”) ARAGIMBARICERE —BAEW
and Yan Hei, both parties have agreed to establish a Sino-foreign co- FE2ER EHRBKAE EHLR
operative joint venture enterprise known as Xiamen Plaza, an indirect EREMREERNBEEARAA(R
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to operate and manage the B RRBRIzHEEZENBLAR A
Hotel. The land use rights of the Hotel have been granted to the joint EEEREEEMREMENEBEE(E
venture partner and Xiamen Plaza is vested with the land use rights of the ED-BETHEREERTEER
Hotel throughout the operation period of Xiamen Plaza. B T BB A & HA R B S 2 1t R A

BHEBMA -

(i) The Group’s prepaid lease payment is a leasehold land situated in the (i) FMRFBRzZAEBEMNLHHEERE

PRC and held under medium-term lease. TIRFPEHROEE -

MBRRARATN —T——£45% O



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S 3Rk MY A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT (CONTINUED) 16. A HENRKE @

Notes (continued): Hiat (&) -

(i) At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out a review of the iy HWMEBER NEEHAEBEESR
recoverable amount of its leasehold land. The leasehold land is used in ZIEMN T HEEZRBEET I UEBE
the Group’s hotel segment. In performing impairment testing, the directors Z2EB -BETREIRAE AATE
of the Company reviewed the carrying amount of the leasehold land by ERNEHENLIHWEERBE2ERE
reference to a valuation performed by Norton Appraisals Limited, an HE2ELHBRFGFEERAAZGE
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group. B THEBRIEERAAABIEE
Norton Appraisals Limited is a member of Hong Kong Institute of FEMMESIEME2ee 8 K EKR
Surveyors. The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a EERAME - ZIKWEBEZESE
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on HENRRBERESEBMMEZRF
financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period and N BEEEAEM RS RENL
a discount rate of 9.10% per annum. The key assumptions for the value in FIIRITIHRE 2 A REETE -7 A
use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth in revenue, BEMNTEREAHANITER - g AL
direct and other operating costs during the period. The management R HELRHMEEKK - EEE G
estimates discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ZHBRRERMRETBETFGHZE2E
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU. HWEBNEERESEASMUZEETR
There was no impairment for the year ended 31 December 2011 and Bz - ZT——F+-_A=+—HEK=
2010. T EET A=+ -BFEHAEAL

EREEE -
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REY =
Group and Company ARERERQTF
2011 2010
—2——F —E-F

FAIR VALUE NFE

Balance at beginning of year F )45 8 28,675,000 25,560,000

Disposal k= (2,800,000) -

Gain on properties revaluation ¥ 3 8 (= 3,925,000 3,115,000

Balance at end of year FIR AR 29,800,000 28,675,000
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2011 and 2010 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out at that date by Norton Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group. Norton Appraisals
Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards, was arrived on the open
market value basis.

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals are measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above are
situated on:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

& B S R R B AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

17.

B EYE

EHERFEERAFAESHEAR_-FT—
—F+A=+T-HBRZE-—ZF+
“A=tT-BZREMEAFEETRH

cEHBERFEERARNSBULESR
ARAEEMERNEMSE eS8 NEKRE
BLERE YHESBER KK
EAERELE 2 RBENE &R - %
HEDETEBNEMESMRNNY
EHEER YERARMEREEET
ft1E °

RELLHERFFEURDRES ZAEH
EDEEADIRARATFTERAFE
YD ERARIMEREDE

Land and building in Hong Kong: LR ERS
Long-term lease RHEIF A
Medium-term lease AR EAE 49

LB EYMEZLEBLE:
2011 2010
—E-—fF —E T
3,400,000 5,300,000
26,400,000 23,375,000

29,800,000 28,675,000

MEZRERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B S R R Y AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. B R A=

Company
A F
2011 2010
—g——% -T-TF

588,543 588,543
(2,365) (2,365)

586,178 586,178

Unlisted shares, at cost FE ET AR - AR
Less: Accumulated impairment B REHRE
Loans to subsidiaries LTHBRARZER
Less: Accumulated impairment B REHRE

107,969,908 114,184,931
(107,490,188) (114,005,809)

479,720 179,122

1,065,898 765,300

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. B A A RE = @)
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company had interests in the AR R —_E—F+_A=+—HBK
following subsidiaries: —E-ZEFF+-_A=+—HFFEAZE

EHBERRESFBOT

Place of Proportion of
establishment/ nominal value
incorporation of issued capital/
and principal registered capital Nominal value
place of held by the Company of issued share capital/
Name of subsidiaries operations 2011 2010 registered capital Principal activities
LR AT EMS
RAIREE ERTRA ZMRER BERTRE
WEARERE BB HEZBSL HEMEAEE FTEXEK
—®-—-& -—T-TF
% %

Direct subsidiaries:

EEMBALAR:
Ming Chuen Construction Hong Kong 100 Ordinary Investment holding
Company, Limited HK$100,000
BIIEEBR QA BB LRk REER
100,000 7T
Yan Hei Limited (“Yan Hei”) Hong Kong 100 Ordinary HK$10,000 and  Investment holding
Deferred (note i) HK$10,000
CEBERRAA BB &A% 10,0008 7T RIEIE 1R EER
A& 17 (Ff 7% ()) 10,0007 7T
Indirect subsidiary:
BEMEAR
Xiamen South East Asia Hotel PRC 100 Registered capital Hotel operations
Company, Limited US$5,000,000
(“Xiamen Plaza”) (notes i)
EFfREIEXBEARAR FE EMEAR BEES
(TEB 1) (B a2 (i) 5,000,000 7T
Notes: Mfa
0] The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends and no rights to receive (i) iR ST IR 1D R AR B O 4 4 R
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the company. In ARBEMRRAREG 2 BEkHFER
the winding-up of the company, holders of the deferred shares are entitled RABHRE ERE - ERBIEITER
to receive half of the amounts paid-up or credited as paid-up on shares BEEROHEABFERRLBRKRS
after the holders of the ordinary shares of the company have received a B AES HiRE S 810,000,000 7T -
total return of HK$10,000,000 per share. H A EWEE G 8 AR (E

R ZHHFIA -

(i) Xiamen Plaza was established as a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture (iiy RBEDBREBEFBEERK L Z2HINEE
company under the laws of the PRC and is currently wholly owned by Yan HEZESIEE YHCE2EHES °
Hei.

BEZRAERAR —T——FF® 95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. R—RBE ARl 2R
Details of the Group’s interest in an associate are follows: AEBBERRFBOT
Group Company
rE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2——-f —T-T —F-——-% =—T-%

Cost of investment in an associate, g & 5145 & 5 7 -

unlisted JEET 5,877,362 5,877,362 —
Share of post-acquisition profits & {5 18 &) 71 5,654,073 4,160,988 - —

10,038,350 —

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the Group had RZE——F+_A=+—BEK=_F—
interest in the following associate: TE+T A=+ -—HAKEEZBE QA
REEMT -
Place of
establishment/
incorporation Proportion of nominal
and principal value registered capital
place of held by the Group Nominal value of
Name of associate operation 2011 2010 registered capital Principal activities
RIREE AEBEAG BETZ
BE AR BB EE 3 E HEMEAEEBEZED L EMEXAEE FEXHK
=B——F —ZT-ZF
% %
Fuzhou Harmony Piano Co., Ltd. PRC 25 Registered capital Design, manufacturing

US$2,000,000 and distribution of
piano and related
products

AMER RE - RERSHE
2,000,000 7T = [ A8 B &

(“Harmony Piano”)

BMMBRZERAAF GalE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

20.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associate is set out below:

10. R—EHBE QT Z2ER @

AEEBERRZHMBERBALT

2011
S

95,327,493

(49,201,752)

Total assets wEE
Total liabilities BmAEE
Net assets BEEFE

46,125,741

Group’s share of net assets of an associate

£ — R E A

RIZFEE 11,531,435

73,396,863

Total revenue U ==
Profit for the year A4 55 A

Group’s share of profit of an associate SEES ML AR ZET
A
INVENTORIES 20. 78
2011
—B——F
Consumables 218 m

REZRERAF

F

;

2010
—E—FF

82,832,074

(42,678,675)

40,158,399

10,038,350

64,554,218

4,431,300 3,600,287

900,072

2010
—E-FF

143,036
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B S R R Y AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EZ R H Mt EWERR
Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EBE——F —Z-ZTF =—B--—-§ =ZE—I%F
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 3K 492,107 952,053 1,000
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts & : & BR # {5 (249,662) 160 430) —
Other receivables, utility deposits ~— H fth fE Jr 718 - A
and prepayments RIEiEE &i‘ﬁ Ol 21,701,480 [EREXGX:0) 4,509,085 1,039,651

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts i : =& BR # 5 (12,914,593) MG 398 426)

Total trade and other receivables 2 5 K& H 4t & Uk BE 2k

8,786,887 2 210,414 4,509,085 1,039,651

R 9,029,332 3,002,037 4,510,085 1,040,651
An aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful BRER REAFEFRBNBRRER
debts at the end of reporting period, based on the invoice date, is B2RRBEZRRZERBROMMT
as follows:
Group Company
rE b NS
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF —B-—-—F —T-F
Current to six months BNEAZ 75 @ A 242,445 791,623 1,000
Over six months and within one year 7~ 1{E A LA & — A = = -
Over one year A — = - -
242,445 1,000
The average credit period on rendering services is 45 days. FEEHFEFHANU+AEAB -

98 FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
#r e B 7S SRR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (conTINUED)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate amount of HK$2,726 (2010: Nil) which are past due as the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 45 days. (2010: 45 days).

An aged analysis of trade receivables that are not considered to
be impaired is as follows:

21.

B2 Kk HAMEVRRR®

RBEHER AEEHEF 2 BHEE
MEZEKEZREAR726ET(ZF
—TFE)  NEBEY R FMHKEE
BERMER - FEERFHAODTER(Z
Z—TH PTAR) e

REABRBZFEREZRAZRRD
W

Group Company
rEH PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—F =—Z-ZF ZZE-——F <Z—ZT-FTF
Neither past due nor impaired RiBHE N ERE 239,719 791,623 1,000
Past due but not impaired 3B (B R (A
Current to six months BNER = /5@ A 2,726 .
Over six months and ANEA N ER
within one year —F R s
Over one year BiE—F —
242,445 1,000 1,000

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

5 B T (B 2 KR S R B (I
R ABREENES -

BHEEREZEREERERNEEES
REFGRENBIEP, REBEBELR
ARBEERREFT B FHEBRIERE
B REEEEXREEANE R
BEMKE - KRESRBZEERELE
AERREERTT -

MEZRERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B S R Y AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (conTiNUED)  21.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade
receivables is as follows:

25 Kk H b E W R @

BEZRWERRRRBE2EHOT :

Group Company
rE QT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B2——F —ZT-ZTF =—B--—-§ ZET-FF
Balance at beginning of the year 4 %] 45 & 160,430 92,595 —
Impairment losses recognised BB EER 82,118 64,154 —

Foreign exchange translation gains [& i, I 25 ARL!

Balance at end of the year FE & 249,662

3,681 —

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on other HMEWERREREZEHOT
receivables is as follows:
Group Company
NE ¥
2011 2010 2011 2010

Balance at beginning of the year 4 ] 4% &
Impairment loss recognised (B B 1B TR
Foreign exchange translation gains [& 5, 4§ &%

12,398,426
59,774
456,393

F K A ER

12,914,593

Balance at end of the year

Included in the allowances for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables and other receivables with balances of HK$249,662
and HK$12,914,593 (2010: HK$160,430 and HK$12,398,426)
respectively. The individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties or in dispute and the management
assessed that the recovery of the amounts is doubtful. The Group does
not hold any collateral for these balances.
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11,861,926 —
68,994 —
467,506 —

12,398,426 —

AREREFEEENRECE S KA
it & U BR 3 9 Bl & 45 #2249,66278 7T &
12,914,593 7L (=& — T 4 : 160,430/%8
JL &% 12,398,426 7 7T ) © {6 515 (B FE Y 3K
HENATRRSES UGB 2 RFEFEBAR
EREERABNEZERE - AEE
RS EREEDEMER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

22.

An aged analysis of impaired trade and other receivables is as

follows:

Current to six months

Over six months and within
one year

Over one year

BU AR Z= /< {E B
NE A A E R
—FR

HBiE—F

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Cash at bank and in hand
Short-term bank deposits

RITRFHE S

& AT 3

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The short-term bank deposits carry fixed interest rates
which range from 0.05% to 5.1% (2010: 0.05% to 1.875%) per annum.

At 31 December 2011, time deposit, bank balances and cash of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately
HK$31,369,000 (2010: HK$22,816,000). The remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed
by the government of the PRC.

T :

Group
AEE
2011 2010

—®-—-% _—T-TF

1,933

= 22,974
13,164,255 12,633,949

13,164,255 12,558,856

1. EGFREMEWERNR @

EREE S K HthfE Wz iRk 20

Company
ARHF
2011 2010

—F-—-F ZT-TF

22. RITHEBRRE

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—®--% -—T-TF

3,647,197
39,642,706

3,327,278
34,687,610

2,200,315
39,642,707

43,289,903 37,914,888 41,843,022

ROBBREARTEIEDF %
% - SERITIE 2 BT E 005
EESIEZERNEHE - (ZF—F

Company
PN
2011 2010

—E-—F =—ZZ-ZF

2,679,818
34,687,610

37,267,428

&FFHZEOOSEZE 1.875E) ©

R-ZB——F+-_A=+—8 K&E
THER ROTLEBRRASAARE
(TAR¥]) € %8 K 4931,369,0007%8 7t (=
T —T4F 228160008 L) AE &
BT IT INE BE AT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. EZREMENER
Group Company
M AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
—®-—-% -T-FTF —®-—-F =—T-TF

Trade payables B 5 EIRR 1,038,683
Other payables H i FE 1< BR 3R 10,435,249

Total trade and other payables B 5 K H b B BR 3K

o) 11,473,932
Less: Other payables classified B H AL E R D S
as non-current liabilities RIERBEGBZ

(note) 14D (Bt a2) (6,110,900)

5,363,032

Note:

Pursuant to the Management Contract, Friendship International paid RMB5
million, equivalent to HK$6,110,900 (2010: HK$5,894,350), as security deposit
to Xiamen Plaza, which is refundable upon expiry of the Management Contract.
The expiry date of the Management Contract is 9 March 2013 and, accordingly,
the balance of security deposit is classified as non-current liabilities.

An aged analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

1,309,843 9,775 8,500

8,035,204 1,066,972 959,086

9,345,047 1,076,747 967,586

(5,894,350) —

3,450,697 1,076,747 967,586

ER

REEESR FEEMRBEXNTARE
5,000,0007T * % 16,110,900 T (=T —F
F 58 30BTTIERREBER S ZRBRK
SARERARIMEED - BEEAREZE
BEA-_ZT—=F=ANAB Bt ZRIJR
EDHEIHERIERBEILE -

ERHEZRARFERREED ZRR
DA -

Group Company
rE b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F =T =—B--—-§ =ZE—I%F
Current to six months BIEA = /5@ A 310,313 734,704 8,500
Over six months and within NEA MR E R
one year —FEU>R 145,078 467,288 —
Over one year Bl —F 583,292 107,851 —

1,038,683

The average credit period is 45 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

24. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior year:

e B S R R B AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_ZT——F+_A=Z+—BHEFEEWBTIR)

24, EEBE

UTRAEEARANFERBEFERER
ZEBEREHIAER R EE

Group K&
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Accelerated tax Fair value
depreciation gain Total
bR B IE T B AT E KR wE
At 1 January 2010 R—_ZT—ZTF—H—H 6,934,825 3,206,109 10,140,934
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss 825 (H4), /X H
(note 9) (K&t 9) (594,525) 513,975 (80,550)
Effect of change in tax rate HEREZHE 598,534 — 598,534
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZEF+=-A=+—H 6,938,834 3,720,084 10,658,918
(Credit)/charge to profitor loss A8z A (%), H
(note 9) (M7t 9) (680,522) 452,091 (228,431)
Effect of change in tax rate MENE 22 288,656 — 288,656
At 31 December 2011 R==2——F+=A=+—H 6,546,968 4,172,175 10,719,143
Deferred tax assets ELEBBERE
Tax losses
HIEER
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 and N=-ZB—-ZFEF—H—H =—ZB—Z5+=H1
31 December 2011 =t+t—-BRR=2——%+=A=+—H 1,894,269

REZRERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

24, DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 24, IE 3E Bl H ()
Company KAQF
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEBERS
Accelerated tax Fair value
depreciation gain Total
bR B 1E 4 B A FERH B
At 1 January 2010 R—ZFT—ZFF—H—H 1,209 3,206,109 3,207,318
Charge to profit or loss (note 9) Rzt X H (K172 9) 9,851 513,975 523,826
At 31 December 2010 RZFE—ZEF+_A=+—H 11,060 3,720,084 3,731,144
(Credit)/charge to profit or RE=EHR RE) S (HaE9)
loss (note 9) (3,891) 452,091 448,200
At 31 December 2011 R==——F+=A=+—d 7,169 4,172,175 4,179,344
Deferred tax assets ELEBIBEEE
Tax losses
HEBE
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 and R-—EBE—FEF—H—H —E—ZFF+=-A8
31 December 2011 =t+t—BRERR=-—ZE——%+=-_B=+—H 1,894,269
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated and company MEERATIMBRAKRZHKRESK -
statements of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and HHELEHEBEEELRBELHREE 3t
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred EHRERZEERBEG D ITH
tax balances for financial reporting purposes: T
Group Company
rE VNN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—®——-% -—T-TF —¥--F -—Z-%
Deferred tax assets BIEMIBE E 1,894,269 1,894,269 1,894,269 1,894,269
Deferred tax liabilities FETIEE & (OAAEAEKIE (10,658,918) EMURVEKRZDNE (3,731,144)

(8,824,874) (8,764,649) (2,285,075) (1,836,875)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

& B 5 R R Y AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)

HE_Z——F+-A=+—BFEMABTIR)

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (CoNTINUED)

At 31 December 2011, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$140,072,612 (2010: HK$139,952,543) available for offset against
future taxable profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. At 31
December 2011, deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect
of tax losses of HK$11,480,421 (2010: HK$11,480,421). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
HK$128,592,191 (2010: HK$128,472,122) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

24, I 3E F 18 (@)

R—ZE——E+=-_H=+—8 ' K&
E 5140,0726127%8 w( =& — & F :
139,952,543% 7t ) 2 R & T 18 /&5 18 7] &
RgEE - R ——F+ A=+
—H ERRAELEHEALAENTE
B 18 511,480,42178 L ( — & — T 4 ¢
11,480,421 7T) c B KBLTBEF A& 2
A - E A 36128,602,191 8 T (= =
— T4 128,472,122 T ) 2 Rt Fi 1A
E 1R FER o

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. R A
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
BREZE BT REHE B IT
Authorised 5 E IR A
Ordinary shares of B MEEO.125 T
HK$0.125 each 2 AR Rz Lo NololoNolo]olumct: [0 Ko [0 0o [o[o i 3 040,000,000 380,000,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRBERAE
At beginning of year F Y 4 R 534,240,000 66,780,000 532,780,000 66,597,500
Exercise of share options under  1T{£ & B BE ik s1 2l
the Company’s employee (H17£30)
share option plan (note 30) - - 1,460,000 182,500
At end of year REK 534,240,000 66,780,000 534,240,000 66,780,000

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 1,460,000 share options
were exercised at a subscription price of HK$0.184 per share, resulting
in the issue of 1,460,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.125 each in the
capital of the Company and giving a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$268,640.

BHE-_ZE—ZEFE+_A=+—HFEEH
fE - 1,460,000k & IR E1E0.125/8 7T 2 &
AREREIZRER0184B T 2 IR ETT
i - 4830 & R {E49268,6407% T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

26. RESERVES 26. f#1E
(@ Group @ A&
Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the AREERBEEES 2FBEHNE 42
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 42. BiEEEREEE-
(b) Company (o) I VN

Share-based
Share compensation Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total
UGB
SRHEEDN
10 s E B < % 15 ZitEE &5t
Note (i)
Bt aE
At 1 January 2010 R —TF
—H—H 576,304,933 268,640 (577,089,851) (516,278)

Loss for the year REEERE — — (1,258,991)  (1,258,991)
Other comprehensive income 7N 4 [Z H {th 2 T W &5

for the year = = — -
Total comprehensive loss REELHEBERE

for the year — — (1,258,991) (1,258,991)
Issue of ordinary share under 1R 1% 12 8 8 % #E 51 21

employee share option plan 3£ 77 % & i% 354,780 (268,640) — 86,140
At 31 December 2010 RZT—FF

+=-—A=+—H 576,659,713 — (578,348,842) (1,689,129)

Profit for the year N [E 5 A = = 8,848,433 8,848,433
Other comprehensive income 7N £ & £ #f & & W 25

for the year = — - -
Total comprehensive income 7N 45 £ & [ Y 25 48 28

for the year — — 8,848,433 8,848,433

At 31 December 2011 R=-ZT——F
+=—B=+—8 576,659,713

(569,500,409) 7,159,304

Notes: Haz -
(i) The application of share premium is governed by Section 48B of (0] BB ERSTESRTIEEE 48B
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. (REFEE S o
(ii) At 31 December 2011, no distributable reserve of the Company (ii) N-_ZEE——F+_A=+—H ' KXQHF
was available for distribution as dividends (2010: Nil). BET MY REEEREDE( - —
T ) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

& B 5 R R Y AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)

HE_Z——F+-A=+—BFEMABTIR)

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2010.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (including trade
and other payables), bank balances and cash and equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the management of the Group considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and the issue of new shares as well as the issue of new
debts.

27.

EXEkER

FEBEEBEER  AERASEET
ERFEEESBELCEEL ANES
BLEEERBRAERRERE RO R -
REEZ EBREEEF B -

AEBEZEARBRERAGB(BRES
REMEMER RekReFEEAE
URARARABFAEARGRERZ BEE %
TTRRAS R fé g

AEEEEEETHMWEHNEARARESE K
SEEEECEEREARARERER
ZBRBHORBRERBEMOEPED A
SEERBRERE  BITHRLES
BT A F B BB E ABRE o

Gearing ratio BEER
2011 2010
—2——F —E—EF
Debt (note i) &8 (ffati) 5,363,032 3,450,697
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS (43,289,903) (37,914,888)
Net debt BERFHE (37,926,871) (34,464,191)
Equity (note i) A& AS 4 = (B £ i) 134,839,830 129,713,868
Net debt to equity ratio FEE B AR R N/A N/A

Notes:

(i) Debt comprises trade and other payables as detailed in note 23.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

it o

0 BEREEE S REMEMNER  FEH
P 5E23

(i) BARZEEAKEMEEALEE-
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HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. €T A

(@) Categories of financial instruments

(a)

SRIAEDSSE
2011 2010
—E——# —T-T&

7,875,891 1,837,541
43,289,903 37,914,888

51,165,794 39,752,429

Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables B KRB
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 K& E Mt fE U BR 3K
— Bank balances and cash —RITEHRKIR S
Financial liabilities LRBE
Amortised cost 55 X A
— Trade and other payables — B REMEMIERK

9,764,893 8,730,525

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bank balances and cash and trade and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s exposure

in respect of financial instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 28. €/t T B @)

(b) TREREREBREMBX

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued) (&)
Market risk ™ 15 & B2
Foreign currency risk management SN L B B R

Substantial revenue and cost of the Group are denominated in
the functional currency of the group entities. Certain trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash and trade and other
payables are denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy, as the
management considers the exposure to foreign currency risk is
insignificant to the Group. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is not exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group currently does not
have interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rate for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding during the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2010: 50 basis points) increase or decrease in HIBOR is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2010: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all the variables were held constant, the
Group’s:

Post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$165,000 (2010:
increase/decrease by HK$144,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable financial
instruments.

RNEEEB Wz KK Z D EB
ARINEEBHE - EETES R
HiEWERR  BITEABKERER
B 5 & E b AR B AN B
BB o AN E 3 I I £ ({1 Jh
EEEHITH - BERESEY
ETHIINERR  WRAKBERZRE
R ERINE R o

Tl % @ f & 2

AEBAREEANH AR K
ReREMNEXER -ANEELEME
MMEEH TR BEREEHER
MEXEREEER S EREESH T
BEARNE @R -

Tl 2 G 5= 7347

BT B U 47 1R B 0

ERZHTELRMEE (BREF
MRER EY 2 FIEARAEE
B 2 - 78 4817 F) 47 B SO K B
EFTERAEEERS %A
REER MAEREHHERS
DES:RATR

WIFREOEE(ZF—FF  50%
B) LA/ TRREMAEEER
HRE AEE

BHE-_Z——F+ZA=+—8H
FEHBE BRI E AT &M
165,000 T (ZF— T F : 3
b/ 144,000 T) o t T EE
HRAEEMNZSVHEITEEY
9 F1) =& = B2 BT B o
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Price risk

As the Group has no significant investments, the Group is not
subject to significant price risk.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the management considers that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities which are included in the
maturity analysis provided internally to the key management
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity risk. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I 7% R R MY & (8)

e R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=Z+—BFEEWBTIR)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

()

Liquidity risk management (continued)

28. TR T B um)

(b)

(%)

cREREEBENMBER

REBEEEREIE @)

Liquidity tables (continued) TEEE X (E)
On demand Total Total
or less than 1to3 3 months 1to Over5 undiscounted carrying
one month months to 1 year 5 years years cash flows amount
RER
320 —Z ={@A —FZ @B R
—{@A =@A E2—F RF HBE ReRheE HE
2011 — B ——£
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b f& {4
BE 2K 1,074,403 1,355,454 613,543 6,721,493 - 9,764,893 9,764,893
2010 —E—TF
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMER
BR 3K 121,914 1,300,687 909,783 6,398,141 — 8,730,525 8,730,525

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions traded in active market are
determined with reference to quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively.

The fair values of derivative instruments are calculated
using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow analysis is performed using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives. Foreign currency forward contracts
are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and
yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching
maturities of the contracts. Interest rate swaps are
measured at the present value of future cash flows
estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield
curves derived from quoted market prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 28. €@t T H )
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (continued) c) eMIAZAFE@m
(i)  The fair values of other financial assets and financial iy HEMemEERSREBEZ
liabilities (excluding those described above) are determined NRTEETIRE —RERNZE
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models BEA - EREEBEAEE
based on discounted cash flow analysis. DITMEE °
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts AATEERAEESUMBRERN
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the THZemEEMCRAGER
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values. BEEANFEREE
29. OPERATING LEASES 20 REHERH
The Group as lessee AEBHABA
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF

Minimum lease payments paid under operating 78 4 & 1B 15 &5 %f fﬁ & &t

leases during the year: Z IR FRE

Premises LS 562,172
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company had REEMREEH  NEE RARQ R
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- B R AAIHUE 2 & & HE A E & EA R

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: AT :
2011 2010
= i —FT-FF
Within one year R—FA 587,136
In the second to fifth years inclusive R-ZEZERAFNR 195,712

782,848

“E——F+_HA=t+—HB B@HK
ENKEHENASME - AEENH
MR EHEEEYREREE -

At 31 December 2011, operating leases relate to office premises with a
lease term of two years. The Group does not have an option to
purchase the leased assets at the expiry of the lease period.

WW P %

MBRRARARN —T——FF% 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e B S R Y AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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29. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$1,410,874 (2010:
HK$1,272,720). All of the Group’s investment properties are held for
rental purposes. The Group leases its investment properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from one to three years (2010: one to four years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company had

9. REHFEZHm

AEBHBHBEA

EW%H&Zi@M%ﬁ%M&)\%@JZ%
1,410874F T (=& — T F :1,272,720
S IL) $%IZ&§%%%%%VE&
HAZ AKBUKLEHELHELEY
X -FBYMEZMEHEPAEHRAFH
HE—ZE=ZF(ZFT—FF: —ZEWF)-

REEHRKEER  AEEBRAQFHE
}':E pY

contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease AAAEEREHESARENREN
payments: T
Group Company
wE AN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B2——F =TT =—B--—-§ =ZE—FF
Within one year —FR 3,315,283 3,162,084 1,369,328 495,480
In the second to fifth years inclusive & A F R 2,769,735 5,111,473 1,558,310 182,200

6,085,018

8,273,557 2,927,638 677,680

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 30. LR ABER 22X 5

(@) Employee share-based compensation
benefits

Employee share-based compensation benefits represent the fair
value of employee services estimated to be received in exchange
for the grant of the relevant options over the relevant vesting
periods, the total of which is based on the fair value of the
options at grant date. The amount for each period is determined
by spreading the fair value of the options over the relevant vesting
periods and is recognised as employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 30. U AE®R 22X 3 @)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options iR

(b)

Purpose of the share options scheme

The purpose of the share options scheme is to provide
participants of the same with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage them to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

Eligible participants of the share options scheme

(i) any executive, non-executive or independent non-executive
director of any member of the Group or an entity in which the
Group holds an interest (“Affiliate”); (i) any employee or officer
(whether full time or part time)(“Employee”) of the Group or an
Affiliate; (i) any shareholder of any member of the Group or an
Affiliate who has, in the opinion of the Board of Directors,
contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of
the Group; (iv) any customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant
or adviser of or contractor to any member of the Group or an
Affiliate; or (v) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or
any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, Employee, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
consultant or adviser of or contractor to any member of the
Group or an Affiliate; or (vi) a company beneficially owned by any
director, Employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor any member of the Group or
an Affiliate.

Total number of securities issuable

The maximum number of shares which may be granted under
the Share options scheme and any other schemes involving the
issue or grant of options or similar rights over shares or other
securities by the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10%
of shares in issue as at the date of approval of the Share options
scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options (continued)
Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by the shareholders, no option may be granted
to any eligible participants which if exercised in full would result in
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options already granted or to be granted to such eligible
participant under the Share options scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of such new
grant.

Period to take up share options and minimum period
to hold before exercise

There is no minimum period within which the shares option must
be taken up or for which a share option must be held before it
can be exercised.

Amount payable to take up share options and time to
accept offer

An offer for the granting of share options under the share options
scheme shall be accepted within 28 days from the offer date and
by way of payment of a consideration of HK$1.

Maximum period for exercising on option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
share options scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board of Directors to each
participant, which period may commmence on the date on which
the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not more than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 30. LR ABEB 2R 3 @m
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options (continued) (b) BB #E @

Exercise price THEE

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the Board of TEEBNAREEESEZE

Directors of the Company and shall not be less than the highest BOERAELR T =255

of: =

()  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock () REBBERELKRE B
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of FrB s &R ® 2 Bl E
the relevant option, which must be a business day; (EBMEREHH):

(i)  an amount equivalent to the average closing price of the (i) BEFHEBRESLRAAL
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations B2l B HERERE
sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the HEHDFEHKRTELRES
date of grant of the relevant option; and N

(i) the nominal value of a share. (i) MRMHMEE -

Life of the share options scheme BRETE 2B M

The share options scheme shall be valid and effective for a period BRRE SN EE A B R M

of two years commencing on the date of adoption of the share FERNBEBNLERR -

options scheme.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 30. U BB ABERB X 2w
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options (continued) (b) &5 AR #E )
Life of the share options scheme (continued) BREFTSE 2B XH @)
The following tables disclose the movement of the Company’s HEz-—_ZET—ZEF+-_A=+—H
share options held by directors and employees for the year FEHABAETFTESENEIZER
ended 31 December 2010: B2 EEMT
2010 — T

Granted Exercise Forfeited Expired
Outstanding during during during during Outstanding at

at1/1/2010 theyear theyear theyear the year 31/12/2010

R-B-ZF R-E-FF

—A—B REE REFE REE REXE +ZA=+-H

i R AT & 7 BE g e R A7 2

No. of share options RS E 1,460,000 — (1,460,000) = = —
Exercise price TEB HK$0.184 —  HK$0.184 — — -
The 1,460,000 share options exercised during the year ended 31 HEz_—_ T ZF+_-_A=+—H
December 2010 resulted in the issue of 1,460,000 ordinary FE H M &K 2§ & 1,460,000
shares of the Company and new share capital of HK$182,500 DERREITE B AN A
and share premium of HK$86,140 (before issue expenses), as 771,460,000 0% & i@ A% @ 42 P& K
further detailed in Note 25 to the financial statements. 1825008 T R BB 2 % B A

86,1408 ;L (RN AHBE 1T E A AT -
KA ISR RN L 258 — S A&
1t »
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(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options (continued)

The closing price per share immediately before the date on which
the option for 1,460,000 shares was exercised on 14 May 2010
was HK$0.64.

There was no Company’s share options held by directors and
employees as at 31 December 2010 and 2011.

No options were granted under the share options scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the exercise in full of
the vested options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, resulted in the issue of additional 1,460,000
ordinary shares.

31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of
trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government of
the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated income statement of
HK$456,787 (2010: HK$440,393) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.
There was no outstanding contribution as at 31 December 2011 and
2010 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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31.

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 30. U AEB 2R Z @m)

(b) &8 AR E @)

REBEE_-_ZT—ZTFRATTABETT
{8 1,460,00015 8 A% # Al 2 & I% I
ZBEA0.64BTT °

R—ZE——F+_A=+—HRK
—E-TE+_F=+—H L&
EREERBERERERE-

BE—_Z——%+t-A=+—H
R-ZF-FF+-A=t+—BF
JZHAR - 3 AR R B AR A B T
' P PR o

BE-_Z—ZTF+=ZA=+—8H
FEHEAM 765 80 P A HE B AR A
EERERERAEERE  ZSER
¥ & R 38 N B 17 1,460,000 3 A
%o

iR k18 At &

AEBRBERGMERE R EERHSE
FEREREERY —HBREDE &
PN EERAKBEEARANSR XXE

RAREE -

AEBERFBRAEZHBE AR ZRYH
ZHERAFA 2H-BEREEAEH
BT EERABHNETE - HBRFA
RIBEKAMIEER DL RARIKE
FeErBl R e AEERRARBAGE 2
W—EEELEEMRNK-

FFEXEAERGEEZANRRA
456,7877% o ( = T — T F : 440,3937%
70) B AR A & B R IR 5 Bl 51 &) P R
ZIEELE AEBARZZTE——F+=
A=t—HBRZZE—ZF+_RA=+—
B 5 Al 3 R R B FE o

MEZRERAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
HE-_Z——F+_A=+—BFEEWBTIR)

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with
related parties:

RHAEALTZXRS

AEBRAFEEATLTIBEEALZ

R5

Related parties Nature of transactions Notes
BEAL REER B 5
Fellow subsidiaries Office, directors’ and staff quarters rental (i)
EESU)- NG| Br2 ESkEEEES
Building management fee (i)
BFERE
Notes: Hfat -

(i) Office, directors’ and staff quarters rental and building management fee
paid to fellow subsidiaries are based on rates mutually agreed between
the parties involved.

(i) Extension of operating period of Xiamen Plaza

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by Yan Hei and Railway
Department on 1 October 1985 for co-operation on the construction and
operation of Xiamen Plaza and as supplemented and amended
subsequently on 18 December 1987 and 21 January 1992 (the “CJV
Agreement”), the operating period for Xiamen Plaza will end on 11
December 2015. On 6 June 2005 and 20 July 2005, the Company
announced that, Yan Hei entered into an extension agreement with
Railway Department, and Fujian Enterprises (Holdings) Company Limited
(“Fujian  Enterprises”) (as a guarantor) on 9 May 2005 (“Extension
Agreement”), in which, amongst others, the operation period of Xiamen
Plaza will be extended for an additional 10 years up to 31 December 2025
and a change in the terms of the CJV Agreement in respect of the annual
amounts to be distributed by Yan Hei to Railway Department. Pursuant to
the terms of the Extension Agreement, Yan Hei has agreed to pay annual
distributions to Railway Department during the operating period of Xiamen
Plaza up to year 2025 as set out below:

2005 to 2006: US$70,000 per year

2007 to 2011: US$100,000 per year

2012 to 2025: US$200,000 per year
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(i

43,674

AEEWARRZRRMHE QR XN
ZHERFE EERETIBEEHEER
AREEBBIAETRAETERE -

JE = OB 2 #8 & 1

BECEEEEBER —ANEFE T A
— B NUAFEEREERBEEZ
FERXREZBROR Dz HE(HEY
R—AN+tE+ZA+NBR—HIAI
—F—A=t—B®ExRkE EH
E) O ROAZKEHER-_T—AF+
“At+—BRIE - RZZETERFEARNAN
BE-_ZZRF+LA-+H ARAE
i - CEREERIEM(EE)BRAD
AITEEEED (FERANBERZZEZ
AFEFRANBRIYEERZ(ZEER
FD O BEEECEZLEHBER =D
—RAFt+-At—BER -ERBH]
HERRRE)BITERBEEALEDE
IREH+FE_TE_AF+=-A=
+—B TEXREBEFHCESET
HE R BB ZAEREER - REBT
RH#ER CEERERRBLELH
MEE-_Z_AFINPERTHERS
HEEHHOT -

ZETRFETTRF : 470,000
=TT

TR LFF_F——F: 100,000
JT

T -5 -F - HF: F200,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Notes (continued):
(i) Extension of operating period of Xiamen Plaza (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under the Extension Agreement which fall due
as follows:

NREBEEATZRS @
HiaE (&) -
(ii) R BEA 2 & H (48

REERRGEEB  AKERBEERR
BIAREESREMNREEMOT :

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years inclusive WEERFA
Over five years A A F

2011 2010
—z—-f —F-FF
1,553,754 778,217
6,215,016 6,225,736
13,983,786 15,564,340

22,568,293

In addition, Fujian Enterprises irrevocably undertakes to Railway
Department that it will guarantee performance by Yan Hei of its
obligations under the CJV Agreement (as amended and extended).

Railway Department is the joint venture partner of Xiamen Plaza and is
beneficially owned by the State Railway Department. To the best
knowledge, information and belief of the directors of the Company,
having made all reasonable enquiries, Railway Department is
considered as an independent third party as despite being a joint
venture partner, it has no effective interest in the operations of Xiamen
Plaza.

Fujian Enterprises is a trading conglomerate incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, and under administration of Fujian Provincial State-
owned Asset Administration Commission of the PRC. Both Fuijian
Enterprises and the Company are ultimately owned by Fuijian provincial
government of the PRC. There are no common directors among Fujian
Enterprises and any member of the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel

It SN - 2 B AR (A 85 5K /B 1F H S AT R E
o AHREBRECBETERES
e (REFTRER) 2EE -

e

prs

HERARBEZAEEENHN  Efa
BAARBERBBE - BEEN(EH —
DEBEESHERMA BSEMEE BE
HERBREELEZAMENRE EER
RERBRIEERED WA/ BL

E=Fo

EFHERD-FNRBBEMKRILZ X
SEXESERAF AFEHEREH
FEEEEZECER -ERKELRAE
AR HPEBEREERTREHER - F
R 6% B S AN &R B {E ] B B R A I AE A

=

Short-term employee benefits HEE TR

HAES -
TREEABZHMH
2011 2010
—g—-% ~—T-%
1,925,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (in HK Dollars)
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33. PENDING LITIGATION 3. RTHZEH
At 31 December 2011, Xiamen Plaza is a defendant in a pending RZE——F+-_A=+—8"  TBHEE
litigation arising from the balance due and interest payable to Fujian BEERARTHZERALEREER
Sunshine Group Limited of RMB268,716 (equivalent to approximately ZNEBAEREARGEHERENE A AR
HK$328,000). The directors of the Company consider that Xiamen 268,716 7T (3T & #1328,000/8 jT) - & =
Plaza has a valid defence against such claims and no provision has RERBOBYEM R EEEN &
been made in the consolidated financial statements. MR B R AT IEHRER EEHBE -
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Particulars of Property Interests
Y ERE =S

Particulars of investment property interests held by the Group at 31 AEBR -_ZT——F+_-_A=+—HRHFA

December 2011 are as follows: Y ERRFIBAT :
Gross Group’s
Leasehold floor area Year of attributable
Investment properties expiry (square feet) completion interest
HEEEE rEH
REYE A =™ B 5 (EFR) & F 1D s
Hong Kong
&%
Commercial
[ERRYES
1. Shop Nos.1, 3 and 4 2047 10,464 1981 50%

on Ground Floor together

with open yard adjoining

thereto and the whole of

First and Second Floors,

Sun Ming Court,

Nos. 84-90

Castle Peak Road,

Sham Shui Po, Kowloon.
1. LB R IKE —TNEF 10,464 —hN\—%F 50%

5 1L 84-905%

¥TER A

T 3R45R

JE 4 K 4R

ZRIFANR 1

kZtgz2E

2. Shop No. 65 2859 397 1982 100%
on Ground Floor,
Shaukiwan Centre,
No. 407
Shau Kei Wan Road,
Hong Kong
2. BEYGEEE4075 ZNENEF 397 —NN\ZF 100%
LHEER D
b T 6555 5 4
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Particulars of Property Interests (continued)
W) ¥R RS ()

Gross Group’s
Leasehold floor area Year of attributable
Investment properties expiry (square feet) completion interest
BEEEE rEE
REYHE RSN =R (FHR) ¥ B 17 iR
Others
Hth
1. Motor cycle parking 2047 — 1975 100%
space Nos. 54, 55,
56, 57 and 58 of
Yuet Ming Building,
No. 52 Yuet Wah Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon.
1. REEE —EMtEEF o —NtEF 100%
F #5255
A ER &
%54-55:56 57K
58%% & B A
Expiry of Group’s
joint venture Site area Gross floor area attributable
Hotel property period (square feet) (square feet) interest
iy A2 AR REEEE
iRy S SEEWB B (FFR) (FHER) KEE
PRC
B
1. Xiamen Plaza 2025 60,381 225,827 100%
908 Xiahe Road,
Kaiyuan District, Xiamen,
Fujian Province,
The People’s Republic of China.
1. J= P9 3R B 38 ROB & —E_RE 60,381 225,827 100%

FEARLFE
BEE
ErMmHETRE
JE K ¥ 90855
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